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Chairman’s Statement

EFREHEE

I am pleased to present the annual report of Kingdom Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Kingdom”
or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

As the world’s largest manufacturer of linen yarn, Kingdom produced
16,704 tonnes of linen yarn during the Year.

During the Year, the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
pandemic has affected literally every country in the world. The
Group's pure linen yarn exports amounted to 7,640 tonnes for the
Year (2019: 10,900 tonnes), representing a decrease of approximately
29.9% as compared to the total amount of pure linen yard exports
of the previous year, while the total export of pure linen yarn from
China dropped by approximately 24% during the same period.
Kingdom continued to account for more than 40% of the total pure
linen yarn export from China in 2020, which maintained the Group's
leading position as the largest pure linen yarn exporter in China for
18 consecutive years. The Company’s top five export markets are
Italy, India, Turkey, Korea and Portugal. The trend of environment-
friendliness and the use of natural fibers has been set. Linen yarn, as
one of the most environment-friendly fibers, will surely benefit from
this trend. In addition, China has been developed into a sizeable
linen consumer market.

Technological innovation of Kingdom has always been at the forefront
of the industry. The Group applied for 10 patents, including 3
invention patents during the Year and there were 60 approved patents
and 31 patent applications pending approval as of 31 December
2020. These achievements will gradually become Kingdom’s core
competitiveness.

We work towards our commitment to the environment and strive
to reduce emissions with an objective to achieve carbon neutrality
ultimately. We are also collaborating with CottonConnect, a United
Kingdom based non-profit and social-oriented enterprise with a clear
mission to transform the cotton/linen industry for good, to develop
the REEL Linen Code of Conduct. REEL Linen is a sustainability-
driven initiative for brands which are committed for sourcing more
sustainable linen, including improving environment, quality and
traceability conditions in their supply chain factories and farms
worldwide. REEL stands for the idea of “Responsible Environment,
Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements sustainable development into
production practices.
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Kingdom also started manufacturing industrial hemp yarn through
its joint venture in Heilongjiang Province which was established in
2016, in which the Group has a 72.72% equity interest. The joint
venture company has built a new industrial hemp and linen yarn
factory with annual production capacity of 4,000 tonnes of yarn
in Heilongjiang Province. It is also the Group’s maiden attempt to
explore the industrial hemp yarn market. The Heilongjiang factory
produced 2,435 tonnes of hemp and linen yarn during the Year
(2019: 3,042 tonnes).

The Group is also committed to investing in Ethiopia for new
production facilities and has acquired a parcel of land with a site area
of 300,000 square meters located in Adama Industrial Park, Adama,
Ethiopia. The Ethiopia project is expected to generate savings on land
lease, labour, energy and tax and there are possibly exemptions of
quota and custom duty for exports of linen yarn manufactured in
Ethiopia to a vast number of countries in the world. The Company
believes this strategic investment in Ethiopia will have significant
long-term benefits to the Group.

The sudden epidemic crisis caught a lot of industries off-guard
during the Year. Although the outbreak of the COVID-19 is a force
majeure event, its impact on our operations in 2020 cannot be under-
estimated. As a result, the trial production of the Ethiopia production
facility experienced certain degree of delay.

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
believes that opportunities lie within crisis and remains its confidence
in the future of the Group’s operation and profitability. In order to
reserve resources for the Group’s immediate and future expansion,
the Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the Year (2019: HK7.0 cents per ordinary share of the Company).

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the entire staff for their
devotion and contributions in the past year. Further, | would also like
to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) and business partners for their continuous support
for the Group.

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 19 March 2021
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Five Year Financial Summary

LEMBREE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

FEBROLEMRFENREUREERER
BE BREETREERMBRE) W T

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=t+-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—7—735 _j-LﬂE _/\E —‘tﬂf _f_/\ﬁ
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®T:R
REVENUE A 1,057,426 1,499,560 1,245,643 1,023,962 856,243
Cost of sales HEM A (950,129)  (1,136,293) (987,762) (907,694) (704,365)
Gross profit eVl 107,297 363,267 257,881 116,268 151,878
Other income and gains Hithes k1§ & 23,269 17,364 24,308 25,575 54,358
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEMA (38,879) (49,453) (48,687) (39,361) (37,951)
Administrative expenses TBRES (76,062) (82,061) (73,020 (49,670) (58,968)
Other expenses Htnpaz (16,847) (10, 327) (6,818) (38,200) (643)
Finance costs B AA (36,583) (22,148) (21,520) (17,712) (16,059)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-XMBABNEE 11,123 235 - = -
PROFIT/ALOSS) BEFORE TAX bRAgETER, (§518) (26,682) 216,877 132,144 (3,100) 92,615
Income tax (expense)/Credit Fﬁﬁ%ﬁ FA%) /% 14,692 (61,112) (28,957) 3,722 (22,586)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE i (11,990) 155,765 103,187 622 70,029
Attributable to: 1L

Owners of the parent ISYNSIEEPN (10,796) 151,468 102,006 (3,132) 66,344
Non-controlling interests JREERIM R (1,194) 4,297 1,181 3,754 3,685

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE

As at 31 December
®+=ZB=+—-H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZZIFF ZT-HAE IE-N\F 2t IZZKF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®T:R
Total assets BERE 2,597,130 2,725,785 2,127,748 1,962,416 1,930,435
Total liabilities BELE (1,371,027)  (1,444,890) (974,239) (912,220) (843,999)
Non-controlling interests JEbI R (41,886) (43,085) (40,620) (32,439) (18,685)
1,184,217 1,237,810 1,112,889 1,017,757 1,067,751
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The coronavirus disease identified in late 2019 (“COVID-19”) has
severely affected the global economies throughout 2020. There
have been over 102 million confirmed cases globally and counting.
Different countries adopted different strategies during the early 2020
to tackle this pandemic but the effectiveness varied. Many countries
since then have imposed different form of restriction of movement
of people and force closure of office, school, restaurants and
shopping mall. Many fashion brands had filed bankruptcy petition
or announced massive scale down of their outlets and operation.
Consumer behaviour also shifted to embrace more about online
shopping in order to reduce the risk of being exposed to the virus.

China was the first country to identify the virus and warned the rest of
the world through collaboration with the World Health Organisation.
It had successfully contained the situation and it was the only major
economy reported a positive GDP growth in the year ended 31
December 2020 (the “Year”), at a rate of 2.3%. The overall textile
industry in China recorded a growth of 29.2% in export during the
Year, according to the statistics of the General Administration of
Customs of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”).
The market price of cotton has increased by 11.9% in 2020 which
may exert positive influence to the market demand of linen yarn.

According to the statistics of the General Administration of Customs
of the PRC, the total volume of pure linen yarn exports of China in
2020 dropped by approximately 24.0% year-on-year, and Kingdom
exported 7,640 tonnes, accounted for 49% of the total export volume
from China.

In the trough of the economic cycle, the low level of cotton yarn price
may lead to a reduction in demand for pure linen yarn from fashion
brands and garment manufacturers, which favours cotton or cotton/
linen blended yarn and enables products made of these materials to
be more appealing to relatively cost-conscious consumers. However,
if the price factor is being put aside, the market has proven that pure
linen yarn is a preferred choice over linen mixed yarn. For years, the
Group has been focusing on upholding excellent quality and offering
tailored customer services. As such, the Group has always been a key
partner of major overseas linen fabric and garment manufacturers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREwm RO

During the Year, the Group’s pure linen yarn exports amounted to
7,640 tonnes (2019: 10,900 tonnes). The Group continued to account
for more than 40% of the total pure linen yarn export from China,
signifying the Group’s continuous leading position as the largest pure
linen yarn exporter in China for 18 consecutive years.

Revenue of the Group for the Year decreased by approximately 29.5%
year-on-year to RMB1,057,426,000 (2019: RMB1,499,560,000).
Gross profit dropped by approximately 70.5% year-on-year to
RMB107,297,000 (2019: RMB363,267,000) and overall gross margin
decreased to 10.1% in 2020 (2019: 24.2%). Loss for the Year was
RMB11,141,000, as compared from a net profit of RMB155,765,000
for the year 2019. Basic loss per share of the Company (“Share”)
amounted to RMBO0.02 during the Year as compared to basic earnings
per Share of RMB0.25 in 2019.

In order to preserve resources for further operation, the Board did not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year (2019: HK7.0
cents per Share).

Major Markets and Customers

Being the largest linen yarn exporter in China, the Group has a
sales network covering over 20 countries and regions around the
world. In order to timely seize market opportunity, keep abreast
of market trends and deliver comprehensive and efficient services,
the Group has established presence in major overseas linen textile
and consumer markets. The Group currently has one subsidiary
in Italy and agents in Turkey, Portugal, Italy, Lithuania and Korea.
The Group's subsidiary in ltaly keeps its own inventories so that it
can serve the immediate needs and tighten its co-operation with
high-end customers in Europe. During the Year, revenue derived
from overseas sales amounted to RMB581,049,000, representing
approximately 54.9% of the Group’s total revenue. In particular,
revenue from European Union countries amounted to approximately
RMB302,630,000, representing approximately 28.6% of the Group’s
total revenue, while revenue from non-European Union countries
amounted to approximately RMB278,419,000, representing
approximately 26.3% of the Group’s total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Year, the Group’s top five exporting countries are ltaly,
Portugal, India, Turkey and Korea which accounted for 76.2% of the
total export revenue during the Year (2019: 81.5%).

Domestic sales in China decreased by approximately 26.8% during
the Year to RMB476,377,000, representing approximately 45.1% of
the Group's total revenue. In light of the increasing income level,
there have been fundamental changes in the consumption patterns of
the general public in China. Consumers’ concerns have shifted from
pure practicality to quality and the ability to reflect their personal
taste. Linen textiles are not only anti-bacterial and comfortable,
but also highly environment-friendly in their production process.
Therefore, linen textiles perfectly suit the taste of new-generation
consumers who may have a stronger preference over environment
friendly and sustainable products. Many leading domestic and
overseas trend-setting brands and fast-moving fashion brands have
now embarked on their own linen selections. For example, a famous
Japanese brand has not only launched a linen garment line, but also
introduced a tracking system for the use of its raw materials to allow
its product quality and environment-friendliness to be monitored by
itself together with its consumers.

Sales Analysis by Domestic and Overseas Market

FY2020

—ZCEREMBEE

RMB’000 %

ARETFT
China A 476,377 45.1%
European Union Br%R 302,630 28.6%
Non-European Union BN 278,419 26.3%
Total Revenue A 1,057,426 100.0%

EEE R

RERFE  AEENAAXOBRARAF -EH
TP ENEN T EHKERE (G4 GF EA2 H OUW AR
76.2% (ZZE—NE : 81.5%) °

FRENBEREE R AREERLVA26.8%EARE
476,377,0007C > (AN EE B 4BUN A £945.1% © BB
R EERNFRURANKE LT HEBERNEE TR
ANEE HEENBEEMIERNHEEER
BEAKEIELEER EEEEAMESHNE
Mo mMABRNENRTE HEEBENIE
FIRF R TMHSR+ITEH—RBEE
EHRRNIFEEEERAERENETF -
B B ASNET 2 KB RIT SR RS ~ IR SR B 18] R AR 1S
ERAEMREARY FW > —EERBERRE
TMERRE T EmM ARG BEIRSIA T REME
BHEE FHAIHEE —REEERDEM
IRIRE Ko

BERSMHIEHE B

Year-on- Year-on-
year change  year change
FY2019 in revenue in revenue
WA A
“E-hEMBEE REEE REEY
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

ARBFT ARBFT
650,576 43.4% (174,199) -26.8%
349,183 23.3% (46,553) -13.3%
499,801 33.3% (221,382) ~44.3%
1,499,560 100.0% (442,134) -29.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREwm RO

Raw Material Procurement and Related Strategies

During the Year, prices of fibre flax, the major raw material of linen
yarn, maintained stable. The Group mainly sources its fibre flax from
well-established origins such as France and Belgium. Being one of the
largest buyers in these regions, the Group enjoys strong bargaining
power when dealing with suppliers. Furthermore, the Group has
formulated systematic procurement strategies under which the Group
will procure raw materials according to the level of fibre flax harvest,
the Group's inventory level and the market prices of fibre flax so as to
stabilise its raw material costs and overall market demand and supply
as well as reducing the price fluctuations of raw materials.

The Group also procured industrial hemp fibre for production
of hemp yarn in its factory in Heilongjiang, China. Kingdom
collaborated with the local farmers to secure stable supply of hemp
fibre in China with the aim to further stabilise the price fluctuations
and supply of raw materials. The Group is also building a warehouse
in Heilongjiang to manage the storage, logistics and supply chain
management of hemp materials with a vision to make it a national
trading hub of hemp materials in China.

The Group is also collaborating with CottonConnect, a UK non-
profit and social-oriented enterprise with a clear mission to transform
the linen industry for good, to develop the REEL Linen Code of
Conduct. REEL Linen is a sustainability-driven initiative for brands
which are committed for sourcing more sustainable linen, including
improving environment, quality and traceability conditions in their
supply chain factories and farms worldwide. REEL stands for the idea
of “Responsible Environment, Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements
sustainable development into production practices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Production Bases and Productivity
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had four production bases in
China and one production base in Ethiopia.

The Group’s production bases are continuously under improvement.
New production bases are equipped with the latest management
systems, technologies and equipment, a combination of which has
resulted in a smooth operation and reduced unnecessary procedures
and wastage of raw materials, which has improved the Group's
overall production efficiency. These systems have not only made the
production processes more environment-friendly, but also reduced
the production costs of the Group and have laid a solid foundation of
profit growth for the Group in the long run. For further details of the
measures taken by the Group in relation to environmental protection,
please refer to the separate Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Group for the Year, which is expected to be despatched
together with the annual report of the Company for the Year before
the end of April 2021.

China

The one in Rugao City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC has an annual
production capacity of 6,000 tonnes. Another two production bases
are located in Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, among
which the first Haiyan plant has an annual production capacity of
7,000 tonnes and the second Haiyan plant has an annual production
capacity of 5,000 tonnes. The Group has established its fourth facility
in Heilongjiang Province in China with an annual capacity of 4,000
tonnes for flax and industrial hemp yarn. Currently, the designed
annual linen and industrial hemp yarn production capacity of the
Group amounts to 22,000 tonnes based on standardized 24Nm
specification. The utilization of each of the production bases was
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic during the Year.

The Group owns a 72.72% equity interest in the flax and industrial
hemp yarn manufacturing facility in Heilongjiang and it is the
Group’s maiden attempt to explore the industrial hemp yarn market,
as the Company believes industrial hemp yarn market will grow
rapidly in the next few years due to the national policy in China to
promote the planting of industrial hemp in the Heilongjiang region
and the use of the industrial hemp textile products.
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Ethiopia

The Group is also committed to investing in Ethiopia for new
production facilities and has acquired a parcel of land with a site
area of 300,000 square meters located in Adama Industrial Park,
Adama, Ethiopia. The phase one development of this land parcel will
further boost the annual production capacity of the Group by 5,000
tonnes. The Board believes that the federal government of Ethiopia
is keen to develop the Kingdom Linen Yarn Factory constructed and
to be further developed on this land parcel into one of the model
projects of the “Belt & Road” initiative in Ethiopia. The Chinese
government also encouraged manufacturers to expand overseas by
facilitating political risk insurance coverage by state-owned insurance
company. The Ethiopia project is expected to generate savings on
land lease, labour, energy and tax and there are possibly exemptions
of quota and custom duty for exports of linen yarn manufactured
in Ethiopia to a vast number of countries in the world. Despite
there have been on and off ethno-political conflicts since October
2016 leading to the resignation of the Prime Minister of Ethiopia
in February 2018, the Government of Ethiopia had reaffirmed their
commitment in maintaining the industrialization agenda that has
already been initiated. With the new Ethiopian Prime Minister Abiy
Ahmed Ali being awarded with the Nobel Peace Prize in 2019, the
Board believes that the strategic investment in Ethiopia will have a
long-term benefit to the Group. The construction of the factory is
completed, and machinery and equipment have been installed. Due
to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in Ethiopia and the lack of
quarantine facilities to receive confirmed cases locally, in order to
protect the health and safety of our local workers and the Chinese
operation technicians we sent from China, the trial operation of the
Ethiopia factory was temporarily halted. The local workers were
sent home with guarantee monthly payment as recommended and
approved by the local authorities, while most of the Group’s Chinese
skilled technicians were sent back to China during the Year. Once the
pandemic is controlled and/or effective vaccine became available,
the Company will re-commence the trial operation by sending the
Chinese skilled technicians back to Ethiopia, tentatively in March
2021.
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Existing and planned production bases
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Country
EIES
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Patents, Awards and Recognition

The Group has continued to invest in technology and innovation. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group owned 60 registered patents and
there were another 31 patents applications pending formal approval
by relevant authorities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 29.5%
to approximately RMB1,057,426,000 (2019: RMBT1,499,560,000).
The decrease of revenue was mainly attributable to the lower selling
price of pure linen yarn sold during the Year. During the Year, sales to
China, European Union (“EU”) and non-EU markets recorded a drop
of 26.8%, 13.3% and 44.3%, respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the Year, the Group’s gross profit dropped to RMB107,297,000,
representing a year-on-year decline of approximately 70.5% (2019:
RMB363,267,000). Gross profit margin for the Year decreased by 14.1
percentage points to 10.1% (2019: 24.2%) as a result of lower selling
prices of the linen yarn during the Year.

Other Income and Gains

For the Year, other income and gains of RMB23,208,000 (2019:
RMB17,364,000) mainly represented by interest income of
RMB875,000 (2019: RMB1,051,000), various government grants
which amounted to RMB16,598,000 (2019: RMB8,161,000), gain
on disposal of non-current assets of approximately RMB2,755,000
(2019: Nil) and insurance income of RMB132,000 (2019:
RMB1,068,000).
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the Year, the Group's selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately RMB38,879,000 (2019: RMB49,453,000), which
accounted for approximately 3.7% (2019: 3.3%) of the Group's
revenue. The increase in the selling and distribution expenses
as a percentage of revenue in the Year was mainly due to higher
percentage of freight and custom clearance expenses incurred, as
higher sea freight charge imposed by major shipping companies due
to the disruption of the normal freight schedule as a result of the
COVID-19 pandemic during the Year.

Administrative Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted
to approximately RMB76,062,000 (2019: RMB82,061,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 7.3% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease of administrative
expenses was mainly due to savings on entertainment and travelling
expense of approximately RMB735,000, provision of bad debts of
approximately RMB1,902,000 and share award plan expense of
approximately RMB4,293,000.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group for the Year mainly represent the net
exchange loss of approximately RMB14,700,000 due to the United
States Dollars depreciated against Chinese Yuan by approximately
6.5% (2019: exchange gain of RMB5,186,000 recorded in other
income and gains), donation of approximately RMB1,175,000
(2019: RMB282,000) and impairment provision of approximately
RMB124,000 (2019: RMB6,173,000).

Finance Costs

For the Year, finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB36,583,000 (2019: RMB22,148,000), which comprises
of net finance cost of approximately RMB36,113,000 (2019:
RMB21,940,000) and interest on lease liabilities of approximately
RMB470,000 (2019: RMB208,000). Net finance costs represent
the total interest expense on bank loans of approximately
RMB46,881,000 (2019: RMB35,003,000) less amount capitalized
attributable to capital assets. An interest expense of approximately
RMB10,768,000 was capitalized during the Year (2019:
RMB13,063,000).
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Income Tax (Credits)/Expenses

Income tax expense for the Year was a credit of approximately
RMB15,602,000 (2019: income tax expense of approximately
RMB61,112,000). The tax credit mainly represents the tax losses of
the Group available for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Loss for the Year

As a result, the Group recorded a net loss for the Year of
approximately RMB11,141,000, as compared to a net profit of
approximately RMB155,765,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Minority Interests

The minority interests amounted to RMB1,194,000 which represent
the share of the net loss of the 27.28% of equity interests of
Heilongjiang Kingdom Flax and Hemp Co., Lid.* (REE L& EmMZE
BR/AT), attributable to the minority shareholders during the Year
(2019: share of profit of approximately RMB4,297,000).

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Parent

During the Year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners
of the parent of approximately RMB9,947,000, as compared to
a net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB151,468,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Other Intangible Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s intangible assets were mainly
certified emission rights in 2012 for a term of 20 years, which
amounted to RMB4,158,000 (2019: RMB4,703,000). Intangible assets
are subject to amortisation based on their useful lives. For the Year,
the amortisation of intangible assets was approximately RMB545,000
(2019: RMB545,000).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2020, inventories of the Group decreased by
approximately 0.2% to RMB793,825,000 (2019: RMB795,592,000),
the average inventory turnover days increased from 217 days as at
31 December 2019 to 305 days as at 31 December 2020. The higher
number of inventory turnover days was mainly attributable to lower
sales revenue recorded during the Year.

*  For identification purpose only
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Trade and Notes Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, trade and notes receivables of the Group
increased by approximately 8.7% to RMB375,836,000 (2019:
RMB345,813,000), the average accounts receivable turnover days
increased from 78 days as at 31 December 2019 to 125 days as at 31
December 2020.

Trade and Notes Payables

As at 31 December 2020, trade and notes payables of the
Group decreased by approximately 44.6% to approximately
RMB198,863,000 (2019: RMB358,817,000). The average accounts
payable turnover days increased to 107 days during the Year (2019:
97 days).

Interest-bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings increased by 12.6% to approximately
RMB1,015,603,000 (2019: RMB902,351,000), of which
RMB962,399,000 (2019: RMB823,482,000) were classified under
current liabilities and RMB53,204,000 (2019: RMB78,869,000) were
classified as non-current liabilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has net current assets of
approximately RMB121,545,000 (2019: RMB178,938,000). The
Group financed its operations with internally generated resources and
bank loans during the Year. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB166,761,000 (2019:
RMB144,798,000).

The liquidity ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately 109.1% (2019: 113.3%). Total equity of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB1,227,235,000 (2019:
RMBT1,280,895,000).
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had interest bearing bank and
other borrowings repayable within 12 months from the statement
of financial position date of approximately RMB962,399,000
(2019: RMB823,482,000) and long-term interest bearing bank
and other borrowings of approximately RMB53,204,000 (2019:
RMB78,869,000). Together these interest bearing bank and other
borrowings represented a gross debt gearing (i.e. total borrowings/
total equity) of approximately 82.8% (2019: 70.4%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, outstanding contractual capital
commitments of the Group in respect of purchase of property,
plant and equipment not provided for in the annual financial
statements amounted to approximately RMB100,889,000 (2019:
RMB41,370,000).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 29 November 2019, Zhejiang Jinyuan, an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Zhejiang
Ltd.* (I ERIZEBRAF) (“Kingdom
Creative”), pursuant to which Zhejiang Jinyuan agreed to acquire
and Kingdom Creative agreed to sell a parcel of land located at No.
192, Xingiao North Road, Wuyuan Town, Haiyan County, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC (FREIAT L& /8 BB R BB 1925%) with a
total area of approximately 15,700 sq.m. and the buildings erected on
that land comprising two staff quarters and five other buildings with
an aggregate area of approximately 10,000 sg.m (the “Property”) at a
consideration of RMB50,000,000. For further details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2019.

Kingdom Creative Co.,

*  For identification purpose only
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Zhejiang Jinyuan was subsequently informed by Kingdom Creative
that, due to the change in development plan of the land where the
Property is located, the Property can no longer be constructed as
a production facilities as originally planned. As informed by the
relevant PRC local government, the usage of the land where the
Property was located would be changed to commercial purpose,
and the transfer of title of the Property from Kingdom Creative to
Zhejiang Jinyuan pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement would
not be processed accordingly. Having considered the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders and following further negotiation
among the relevant parties, on 23 October 2020, Zhejiang Jinyuan
and Kingdom Creative entered into a settlement agreement (the
“Settlement Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties agreed
that (i) the Sale and Purchase Agreement shall be terminated and
the acquisition as contemplated under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement shall not proceed to completion; and (ii) an amount
of RMB48,000,000, being the amount paid by Zhejiang Jinyuan
to Kingdom Creative upon the signing of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement was refunded in full to Zhejiang Jinyuan within 30 days
upon the entering of the Settlement Agreement. The Group received
the full refund of RMB48,000,000 in October 2020.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not have any significant investments held during the
Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2019: Nil).
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB401,682,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, and inventories with carrying amounts of
RMB252,403,000 (2019: RMB122,816,000), RMB56,029,000 (2019:
RMB39,397,000) and RMB40,000,000 (2019: RMB40,000,000),
respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB25,200,000 were secured
by certain property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
payments of the Group with carrying amounts of RMB71,393,000
and RMB14,783,000, respectively.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for the ongoing investment in our Ethiopia factory project,
various up-keeping and maintenance of existing factory projects and
to build a new warehouse in Heilongjiang, the Directors confirmed
that as at the date of this report, there are no current plan to acquire
any material investment or capital assets.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi,
United States Dollars, Euro and Hong Kong Dollars. The exchange
rate changes of such currencies were monitored regularly and
managed appropriately. The Group had not entered into certain
foreign currency forward contracts and cross-currencies swap
contracts by utilising its credit line during the Year and there was no
such outstanding contract as at 31 December 2020 (2019: derivative
financial instruments of approximately RMB198,000 were recognised
by the Group as a current asset).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REMUNERATION POLICY AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 2,890 employees
(2019: 3,099 employees). Total staff costs incurred for the Year
decreased by approximately 9.7% to RMB184,224,000 (2019:
RMB204,072,000). The decrease in staff costs which stemmed from
automation of certain procedures in the factories resulting fewer
headcount was required and certain local workers in Ethiopia were
dismissed due to temporary halt of the trial operation of the Ethiopia
factory, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic situation in Ethiopia.

The Group offers comprehensive and competitive remuneration,
retirement scheme and benefit packages to its employees. The
Group is required to make contributions (retirement insurance and
unemployment insurance) to a social security scheme in China. The
remuneration policy for the employees of the Group is formulated by
the Board with reference to the employee’s respective qualification,
experience, responsibilities and contributions to the Group, as well as
the prevailing market rate of remuneration for a similar position. The
remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board and the
remuneration committee of the Company with the mandate given by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting having regard to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Group also provides both internal and external
training programmes for its employees from time to time.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a share
award plan for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, and other
employees of the Group who have contributed to the success of the
Group's operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREwm RO

OUTLOOK AND PLANS

The percussion of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 is expected
to carry forward to at least the first half of 2021. Many countries
commenced or will commence administering the COVID-19
vaccination to protect their residents against infection. The COVID-19
situation is expected to significantly improve in the second half of the
year 2021. The demand of linen yarn is also expected to recover and
grow gradually.

The trend of environment friendliness and the use of natural fibers
has been set. Many fashion brands had made commitments to
use environmental and sustainable materials for their products.
Linen yarn, as one of the most environment-friendly fibers, will
surely benefit from this trend. Kingdom also collaborated with
CottonConnect, a UK non-profit and social-oriented enterprise
with a clear mission to transform the cotton/linen industry for
good, to develop the REEL Linen Code of Conduct. REEL Linen is a
sustainability-driven initiative for brands which are committed for
sourcing more sustainable linen, including improving environment,
quality and traceability conditions in their supply chain factories
and farms worldwide. REEL stands for the idea of “Responsible
Environment, Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements sustainable
development into production practices. This initiative would help
Kingdom to move towards a sustainable operation and ensure its
long-term success.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

China has become one of the largest consumer markets for linen
textile products. The Company is confident in the sustainable
demand for linen yarn in the coming years, as the Chinese
government encourages domestic consumption for its GDP growth
and transformation of its economy to lessen the reliance on exports.
Kingdom will continue to leverage on its market leading position to
capture the opportunities in the domestic market.

In addition, the first phase of the Group’s Ethiopia factory with an
annual production capacity of 5,000 tonnes (based on standard
24NM counts) is completed and expected to re-commence the trial
production in 2021, once the COVID-19 situation in Ethiopia has
been improved and/or effective vaccination became available to our
workers. Exemptions of quota and custom duty for exports of linen
yarn manufactured in Ethiopia to a vast number of countries in the
world will help the Group to remain competitive in the coming years.

We will also leverage on our strength and explore the possibilities of
tapping into the linen fabric/garment market in the near future.
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Directors and Senior Management

EShEREEE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ren Weiming ((£4£E8), aged 61, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. Ren is responsible for the overall
management of the Group and making decisions on the business
development strategy of the Group. Mr. Ren has worked in the
silk and textile industry since 1979. He has been the chairman
and general manager of Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd.*
(“Kingdom Creative”), a company which is owned as to 71.64%
by Mr. Ren since 2000. Mr. Ren started to engage in the linen yarn
manufacturing business through Haiyan Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd.* in
December 2001 as its director. He joined the Group in March 2003
when the first operating member of the Group, Zhejiang Jinyuan
Flax Co., Ltd.* (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) was established. Mr. Ren is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He obtained various
awards including National Township Entrepreneur awarded by the
Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC, National Excellent Young Factory
Manager and Zhejiang Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur. He was
a representative of the 9th and 10th National People’s Congress of
Zhejiang Province. Mr. Ren is currently the vice president of China
Bast and Leaf Fibers Textile Association and the vice-president of The
Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. He is also a director of
Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited (“Kingdom Investment”) with
discloseable interests in the Shares under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO”). Mr. Ren is also a director
of Bank of Jiaxing Co., Ltd.*, Zhejiang Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk Co., Ltd.*
(“Jinxiu Jiangnan”) and Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.* (“Interconnect”).

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yueming CLEZBE), aged 59, is an executive Director. Mr.
Shen is a director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Jinyuan”), and Zhejiang Kingdom Flax Co., Ltd.* (“Zhejiang
Kingdom”), all are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Shen is also a director of Heilongjiang Kingdom Flax & Hemp Co.,
Ltd.* (“Heilongjiang Kingdom”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Shen is responsible for the day-to-day operations
and management of the Group and also takes part in the decision
making of the Group. He is also a director of Kingdom Creative,
Jinxiu Jiangnan, Haiyan Chen Chen Silk Clothing Co., Ltd* and
Interconnect. Mr. Shen joined the Group in March 2003.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Hongwen (5R53X), aged 54, is an executive Director.
Mr. Zhang is the director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan,
Zhejiang Kingdom, Kingdom Tiansheng (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd.*
(“Tiansheng”), Zhejiang Kingdom REEL Textile Co. Ltd.* (“Kingdom
REEL") and Heilongjiang Kingdom Hemp Supply Chain Management
Co., Ltd.* (“Kingdom Supply Chain”). He is also a director of
Kingdom Creative, Interconnect, Jinxiu Jiangnan, Zhejiang Yuyuan
Photovoltaic Co., Ltd.* (“Zhejiang Yuyuan”), Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co.,
Ltd.* (“Zhaosu Jindi”), Heilongjiang Kangyuan Bio-Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (“Kangyuan Bio-Tech”) and Mega East Investment Limited.
Before joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Zhang was the assistant to the
general manager and the head of capital clearing division of Kingdom
Creative from 2000 to 2002.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shen Hong CLJE), aged 54, is an executive Director. Ms. Shen
is the management controller of the Group. She completed her
professional accounting studies at Zhejiang Long March Finance
School in the People’s Republic of China in July 1994 and has more
than 20 years of experience in finance-related area. Ms. Shen is the
director of Heilongjiang Kingdom. Ms. Shen is also a director of
Kingdom Creative, Zhaosu Jindi, Kangyuan Bio-Tech, Heilongjiang
Kangyuan Flax and Hemp Seed Co., Ltd.* (“Kangyuan Seed”). Before
joining the Group in March 2003, she worked in Kingdom Creative as
the head of finance management department.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (B85/%), aged 71, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Ngan is the chairman of Millionfull Company Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong engaged in the trading of linen
and linen blend textiles. Mr. Ngan was a member of the 9th and 10th
Fujian Provincial People’s Political Consultative Conference and vice-
chairman of Po Leung Kuk from April 2010 to March 2012. He was
the president of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Ltd.
from September 2009 to August 2011 and has been appointed as the
permanent honorary chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Textiles Ltd. in September 2011 and was a director of HuaQiao
University in 2002. On 22 November 2011, he became a member
of the Election Committee of the Chief Executive Election of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He joined the Group in
September 2004. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of
Millionfull International Co., Ltd which has discloseable interests in
the shares of the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO. He is also a director of Interconnect.
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Directors and Senior Management

EShEREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (B|Z2), aged 47, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Lau is currently an independent non-executive director
of China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 01885),
United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 02337) and
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 06833),
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau
was an independent non-executive director of Xiezhong International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03663) from 16 May 2012 until 30
September 2020. Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree
in finance from the City University of Hong Kong. He has extensive
experience in financial and accounting in China and Hong Kong. He
joined the Group in November 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (/&) aged 47, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Lo has more than 10 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
Mr. Lo is currently a deputy general manager of Guotai Junan Capital
Limited. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of
Raymond Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 00229), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo also has three years
of experience in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr. Lo is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He obtained his bachelor’s degree in commerce from the University
of British Columbia in Canada in 1995. He joined the Group in May
2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (B&#2H), aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting on 30 May 2016. Mr. Yan is currently a professor
of Department of International Economics of Zhejiang University
(“ZJU"), a director of China Society of World Economics (CSWE),
an executive director of Zhejiang International Economics and Trade
Association, an academic counselor of Hangzhou WTO consulting
center and a researcher of the Center for Research of Private Economy
(CRPE) of ZJU. Prior to holding these positions, Mr. Yan served as a
deputy director in Department of International Trade of Hangzhou
University and a director of Department of International Economics of
ZJU. Mr. Yan was an independent director of Hundsun Technologies
Inc. (Stock Code: 600570), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, from March 2010 to October 2014. He is currently an
independent director of Top Choice Medical Co., Inc. (Stock Code:
600763), and Zhejiang Xinan Chemical Industrial Group Co. Ltd.
(Stock Code: 600596), both listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Mr. Yan graduated from Hangzhou University in 1985 with a Bachelor
of Economics degree. He obtained a master degree in economics
from the Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences in 1988. Mr. Yan was
a senior visiting scholar of Le Havre Business School in France in
1997 and obtained a PhD in Economics from ZJU in 2005. He joined
the Group in May 2016.
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EShEREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy (BR1Z#), aged 52, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan has over
20 years of experience in accounting and the financial sector. From
July 2004 to January 2014, he was the group financial controller
and company secretary of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
(Stock Code: 00157), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, responsible for financial planning and monitoring.
Prior to July 2004, he worked in an international accounting firm and
served senior financial positions in a company listed on the NASDAQ
Stock Market and a renowned German exhibition company. Mr.
Chan is also an independent non-executive director of Greentown
Management Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 09979), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and was a holder of Practitioner’s Endorsement certificate issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries from 2010 to 2018.
He graduated from the University of Hull in the United Kingdom
with a bachelor’s degree in economics and accounting in 1992 and
graduated from the lvey Business School with Western University
(formerly Richard Ivey School of Business with University of Western
Ontario), Canada with an Executive MBA in 2008. Mr. Chan joined
the Group in January 2014.

*  For identification purpose only
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It is the Board’s pleasure in presenting their annual report on the
affairs of the Group together with the audited financial statements for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 87.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 4 and page 9 respectively of this annual report.

An indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the sections headed “Five Year
Financial Summary” on page 8 and “Financial Review” on page 16 of
this annual report.

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. In the pursuit of excellent operating results, the Group
also puts a lot of effort into sustainable development. For example,
the Group's factories proactively adopted all kinds of environmental
protection and energy conservation equipment. Photovoltaic (PV)
solar energy accounted for 4.3% of total electricity consumed by
the Group and the annual consumptions of electricity, water, steam
and natural gas decreased by 17.0%, 11.4%, 1.2% and 12.5%
respectively during the Year.

For details of the Group’s performance on environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) aspects including relationships with various
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group, please refer to the Group's
separate ESG report for the Year.

Saved for the announcement of the continuing connected transactions
dated 12 March 2021, the Group has been in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company during the Year.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE
GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of linen yarn
and the sale of the products to over 20 countries. Overseas sales
are invoiced in United States Dollars, except sales by the Group's
subsidiary in Italy which are invoiced in Euro. Domestic sales in
China are invoiced in Renminbi. Raw materials (flax fiber and hemp
fiber) are imported from Europe and sourced in China. The principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group include the demand for linen
yarn, protectionism of certain countries and possible punitive tariffs of
products made in China, stable supplies of raw materials, continuous
decline in cotton price, depreciation of United States Dollars against
Renminbi, the execution risk of the new expansion project in
Ethiopia, and outbreak of epidemic causing disruption of production.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Company provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group also
puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and development
resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.
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IMPORTANT EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY
THAT HAVE OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

There was no important event affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year and up to the date of this
report.

DIVIDEND
At a meeting of the Board held on 19 March 2021, the Board
resolved not to propose the payment of any dividend for the Year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 91.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable
reserves calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands amounted to RMB648,096,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB646,020,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately RMB1,175,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB282,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group are set out
in note 27 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB89,349,000. Details of the movements are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Weiming (Chairman)
Mr. Shen Yueming

Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Ms. Shen Hong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson

Mr. Yan Jianmiao

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting of the Company provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years and be
eligible for re-election. In accordance with article 87 of the Articles,
Ms. Shen Hong, Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, was a party
and in which a Director has a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year except as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below and note 34 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, being independent
non-executive Directors for more than nine years, their re-
appointment will be by way of separate resolutions in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto; provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of said persons. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors” and officers’ liability insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the directors and officers of the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICY i BN ES 2R

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the $MZEEERMAEETEEZANIZNTFE
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company SHEEMREEENHMEEMET FHMEET
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all EHERMAEEZE KR SIEBNFHH > LR
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring ¥ ERF BN R EKFAEE

by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their

remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the EEFHMAIFISE N EFEMERMES
financial statements.

The remunerations of the senior management of the Company, during P> XA B SR BIERE B FHM N F FIIRE !
the Year fall within the following range:

No. of senior
management

BREEEAHK

RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000 AE1,000,0017cE AK1,500,00070 1

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND EEREREERNEEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are ~E B KR EIEEREF BRIV AFRFE28E
set out on page 28 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS EERRERITHRASNRRRG - BRERGS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING ~ REFEANEDRUEE

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors and their associates had the R _Z_ZFE+_F=+—H BEZRKENH
following interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of B ARAR B REEK ZE (EE2RBHFRHEE
the Company and its associated corporations within the meaning of &G ZEXVER) RUA(D ~ HBRARMD RESF > HBR
Part XV of the SFO, which were recorded or required to be recorded — #EFEF R EHRAIEIS2EBEL AT BELRAZKE
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as  REF BN E LM IILR _EH R MR+ E N
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant L8417 AERETHSRZHIEESTR (ME%E
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed — SFBI)) BRI Z AN T KBTI ERWT ¢
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules:
Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”) REQE RS (TR NEFE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
SREEOIBTNEER
Approximately
percentage
Total of issued
Personal Corporate number of share capital
Name of Director EESeEa interests interests Shares held (%)
(Note 1)
HERTRA
BB
VN3 RE)Em KRB (%)
Hzt1)
Mr. Ren Weiming EHERRSEE 12,072,000 302,800,000 314,872,000 50.01
(Note 2)
(Hra22)
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BAEREE 418,000 67,000,000 67,418,000 10.71
(Note 3)
(H5t3)
Ms. Shen Hong LBR L 504,000 = 504,000 0.08
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Notes:

s The Shares are registered under the names of the Directors who are the
beneficial Shareholders.

2% Mr. Ren Weiming holds approximately 76.38% of the issued share
capital of Kingdom Investment. Mr. Ren therefore holds a controlling
interest in Kingdom Investment and is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Kingdom Investment.

£l Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert and Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie Sau Kat, the
spouse of Mr. Ngan, hold approximately 51.00% and 23.00% of
the issued share capital of Millionfull International and 57.98% and
29.76% of the issued share capital of Millionfull Company Limited,
respectively. Mr. Ngan therefore holds controlling interests in both
Millionfull International and Millionfull Company Limited and is
deemed under the SFO to be interested in 64,800,000 Shares, i.e.
10.29%, held by Millionfull International and 2,200,000 Shares, i.e.
0.35%, held by Millionfull Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or their associates had or were deemed to have any interest
or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director, as at 31 December 2020, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity

ARER % TE 5145

Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited
(“Kingdom Investment (BVI)”) (Note 1)

Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited
(TKingdom Investment (BVI) 1) (#7£1)

Millionfull International Co., Ltd.
(“Millionfull International”) (Note 2)

Beneficial owner
Em#EB A

Beneficial owner

Millionfull International Co., Ltd. EmEE A
(" Millionfull International 1) (475#2)
Notes:
1. Kingdom Investment (BVI) is owned as to 76.38% by Mr. Ren Weiming,

an executive Director and substantial Shareholder of the Company.

2. Millionfull International is owned as to 51.00% by Mr. Ngan Kam Wai
Albert, a non-executive Director, and 23.00% by Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie
Sau Kat, the spouse of Mr. Ngan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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Approximately
percentage
of issued
share capital
Number of Shares (%)
HEITRE
RS I=R g
R E (%)
302,800,000 48.09
64,800,000 10.29

Mt -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) with Shareholders’ approval at
the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2016 was adopted on the
same date.

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
grant options to: (i) any Director, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a
company in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary
of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any Director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any
Director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit,
the total number of Shares available for issue under options which
may be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 62,967,800 Shares, being 10% of the number
of issued shares of the Company as at 30 May 2016, the date of
adoption of the Scheme, unless separate shareholders’” approval has
been obtained.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant under the Scheme
shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of grant exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be

specified by the Board at the time of the grant, and must expire no
later than 10 years from the date of grant of option.
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The subscription price for any Share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

No option was granted or exercised under the Scheme during
the Year. No option has been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption on 30 May 20176.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company has adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 26 August 2016. The purpose of the Share Award Plan
is to incentivize, recognize and reward eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group, attract and retain personnel, and align
the interests of award holders with that of the Shareholders to
promote the long-term development and financial performance of the
Company.

The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion, select any
eligible person to participate in the Share Award Plan and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded and the terms and conditions of
the awards. Awards shall be satisfied by Shares acquired in the market
at the prevailing market price and no new Shares will be allotted and
issued under the Share Award Plan. The trustee of the Share Award
Plan (“Trustee”) shall hold the awarded Shares on trust for the award
holders until the awarded Shares are vested in the relevant award
holders according to the Share Award Plan rules. Upon vesting, the
Trustee shall either transfer the vested awarded Shares at no cost to
such award holders or sell the vested awarded Shares at the then
prevailing market price by way of market order and remit the net
proceeds to the award holders in accordance with the direction given
by such award holders.

During the Year, no Shares have been awarded pursuant to the Share
Award Plan. The Board will constantly review and determine at its
absolute discretion such number of Awarded Shares to be awarded
to the selected persons under the Share Award Plan with such vesting
conditions as the Board may deem appropriate.
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Pursuant to the Share Award Plan, 19,400,000 Shares have been
awarded to selected persons on 25 May 2018, of which 19,370,000
Shares have been accepted pursuant to the Share Award Plan. Out of
the 19,370,000 Shares as accepted by the selected persons pursuant
to the Share Award Plan, there were 1,010,000 Shares and 5,159,250
Shares vested and transferred to the employees in 2019 and during
the Year, respectively. In addition, 1,000,000 granted Shares were
returned to the share pool due to resignation of relevant employees
during the Year. As at 31 December 2020, a total of 12,200,750
granted Shares will be vested between the period from 2021 to
2022 subject to fulfilment of the relevant performance targets and
1,030,000 Shares remain available for granting to employees in the
future under the Share Award Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Plan as
disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreement was
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2020 or subsisted at
the end of the year of 2020.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business have
been entered into, or subsisted, between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and any controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 21.8% of the Group’s total sales for the Year and
sales to the Group's largest customer accounted for approximately
5.1% of the Group’s total sales for the Year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 88.9%
of the Group’s total purchases for the Year and purchase from the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 40.4% of the
Group's total purchases for the Year.

So far as the Board is aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued shares) had any interests in the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers noted above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Continuing connected transactions
The Group had entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons and which subsisted
during the Year. The transactions constituted “continuing connected
transactions” for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

1. Lease agreements — as Lessee

(a)

on 30 December 2017, a lease agreement (the “Jinyuan
Lease Agreement 1”) was entered into by Zhejiang
Jinyuan, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, with Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd
(“Kingdom Creative”), a company which Mr. Ren
Weiming has a controlling equity interest pursuant to
which Zhejiang Jinyuan has leased a property located at
Building 13 to 16, Henggang Xing Heng Road, Haiyan
County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, from Kingdom
Creative as the Group's office, for a term from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020 at an annual rental of
RMB190,000.

on 1 July 2019, a lease agreement (the “Jinyuan Lease
Agreement 2”) was entered into by Zhejiang Jinyuan
with Kingdom Creative pursuant to which Zhejiang
Jinyuan has leased a property located at Building 18 to
25, Henggang Xing Heng Road, Haiyan County, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC, from Kingdom Creative for office and
product exhibition hall, for a term of two and a half years
from 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2022 at an annual
rental of RMB286,000.
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on 28 December 2018, a motor vehicle operating lease
agreement (the “Motor Vehicle Operating Lease 1”)
was entered into by Zhejiang Jinyuan with Interconnect
Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd* [E@ERZERE
(L8 BIRAE
Kingdom Creative has a controlling equity interest
and Mr. Ren Weiming, Mr. Shen Yueming, Mr. Zhang
Hongwen and Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, directors of the

(“Interconnect”), a company which

Company, are also directors of Interconnect. Pursuant to
the Motor Vehicle Operating Lease 1, Interconnect has
agreed to lease a motor vehicle with a Shanghai license
plate (allow access to Shanghai City Centre) to Zhejiang
Jinyuan for a term of two years from 28 December
2018 to 21 December 2020. Zhejiang Jinyuan paid
RMB229,000 operating lease charge to Interconnect
during the Year.

on 4 January 2020, a motor vehicle operating lease
agreement (the “Motor Vehicle Operating Lease 2”)
was entered into by Jiangsu Jinyuan, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, with Interconnect.
Pursuant to the Motor Vehicle Operating Lease 2,
Interconnect has agreed to lease a motor vehicle with
a Shanghai license plate (allow access to Shanghai City
Centre) to Jiangsu Jinyuan for a term of one year. Jiangsu
Jinyuan paid RMB159,000 operating lease charge to
Interconnect during the Year.

Lease agreements — as Lessor

On 1 January 2020, a lease agreement (the “Shanghai Lease
Agreement”) was entered into by Zhejiang Jinyuan with

Interconnect pursuant to which Interconnect has agreed to
lease a property located at Unit 2203, 161 Lujiazui Road,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, Pudong, Shanghai, the
PRC, from Zhejiang Jinyuan for office use, for a term from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 with an annual rental of
RMB342,000 payable by Interconnect to Zhejiang Jinyuan.
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3. Miscellaneous income

(@  During the year ended 31 December 2020, Heilongjiang
Kingdom, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, billed electricity charge to Heilongjiang
Kangyuan Flax and Hemp Seed Co., Ltd* (BEe T
REEBRAT), a company beneficially owned
by Kingdom Creative, amounting to approximately
RMB42,000 (2019: RMB73,000); and

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, Zhejiang
Jinyuan sold product to Jinxiu Jiangnan amounted to
RMB75,000 (2019: RMB613,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has
a controlling equity interest over Jinxiu Jiangnan.

Rental and other terms for these lease arrangements were
negotiated between the parties on arm’s length basis with
reference to the then prevailing market rates. The purchase of
chemicals and additives transactions were at cost and purely
made to preserve the commercial secrets of the Group and did
not have any gain during the transactions.

As all the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio)
for the transactions under (1) to (3) above are all less than 0.1%,
the transactions under (1) to (3) above are exempted from the
reporting, announcement, shareholders approval and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

4. Purchases of chemicals and additives

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
purchased chemicals and additives for scouring and bleaching
from Jinxiu Jiangnan with an amount of RMB3,910,000 (2019:
RMB2,595,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a controlling equity
interest over Jinxiu Jiangnan. The Group considered that the
type of chemicals and additives, their mix proportion are
critical to the scouring and bleaching process, together with
the identities of the suppliers (collectively commercial secrets),
are important to the success of the Group. The chemicals and
additives were purchased by Jinxiu Jiangnan, re-labelled and
delivered to the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
The chemicals were charged by Jinxiu Jiangnan at the original
costs from the third-party suppliers plus the additional
transportation costs to the Group's factories. Such arrangements
were purely made to preserve the commercial secrets of the
Group and Jinxiu Jiangnan did not have any gain during the
transactions.
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Purchases of tools and accessories

The Group built a new factory in Ethiopia. Due to the absence
of the relevant tools and accessories in Ethiopia, all of the tools
and accessories used in Ethiopia factory had to be purchased
and shipped from China to Ethiopia. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group purchased tools and accessories
of RMB4,457,000 from Jinxiu Jiangnan (2019: Nil). Jinxiu
Jiangnan is principally engaged in trading business and entitled
to conduct import and export business in China. As the tools
and accessories were sourced from a number of different
suppliers in China, the Group engaged Jinxiu Jiangnan to
procure and collect the delivery of those tools and accessories
from different suppliers over a period of time, consolidate and
arrange the shipment directly to our factory in Ethiopia. The
tools and accessories were charged by Jinxiu Jiangnan at the
original costs from the third-party suppliers plus the additional
shipping costs to Ethiopia. Jinxiu Jiangnan did not have any
gain during the transactions.

The Group has been procuring chemical and additives as well
as tools and accessories from Jinxiu Jiangnan since 2018. As
the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profit ratios)
for the historical transaction amount for both the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019 are less than 0.1% or less than
HK$3,000,000, the transactions between the Group and Jinxiu
Jiangnan for the years 2018 and 2019 were exempted from
reporting, announcement, annual reporting and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, due to an inadvertent oversight, the Company
mistakenly believed that the percentage ratios (other than
the profit ratios) for the historical transaction amount as
contemplated under the transactions with Jinxiu Jiangnan for
the year ended 31 December 2020 were less than 0.1%. In the
course of preparing this annual report, the Company became
aware that the transactions with Jinxiu Jiangnan for the year
ended 31 December 2020 constituted continuing connected
transactions subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements under the Listing Rules. On 12 March
2021, the Company entered into agreements in relation to
the purchase of chemicals and additives (the ”“Purchase of
Chemical and Additives Framework Agreement”) and the
purchase of tools and accessories (the “Purchase of Tools and
Accessories Framework Agreement”) for a term of three years
with retrospective effect from 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The terms of the historical purchase with
Jinxiu Jiangnan were consistent with the terms as contemplated
under the Purchase of Chemical and Additives Framework
Agreement and the Purchase of Tools and Accessories
Framework Agreement as further detailed in the announcement
of the Company dated 12 March 2021.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the

transactions had been entered into:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there are
no available comparable terms, on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions in relation to the purchase of chemicals and
additives as well as purchase of tools and accessories from Jinxin
Jiangnan for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the auditors

confirmed the compliance of all matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the

Listing Rules.

Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement

On 30 June 2017, Zhejiang Jinda and Zhejiang Jinyuan, both
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered
into a purchase agreement (the “Photovoltaic Electricity
Purchase Agreement”) with Zhejiang Yuyuan, pursuant to
which Zhejiang Jinda and Zhejiang Jinyuan agreed to purchase
electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan for electricity generated
from the photovoltaic electricity system owned, managed
and operated by Yuyuan for a term of three years, which
commenced from 1 July 2017 and ended on 30 June 2020, at
an annual cap of no more than RMB3,500,000 per year. Mr.
Ren Weiming, who ultimately controls the Group, also has a
controlling equity interest over Zhejiang Yuyuan.

The Group purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan with
an amount of RMB1,067,000, which was within the cap of
RMB1,750,000 for the six months ended 30 June 2020 as
disclosed in the announcement of Photovoltaic Electricity
Purchase Agreement dated 3 July 2017.
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The price of electricity was made with a discount rate of
approximately 3.5% to the market prices. As the applicable
percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) for the
Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement, on an annual
basis, exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase
Agreement is only subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements, but is exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
For further details, please also refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 30 June 2017 and 3 July 2017.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions had been entered into:

(iv) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

(v)  either (@) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there
are no available comparable terms, on terms no less
favorable to the Company than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(vi) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions as contemplated under the
Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement and the auditors
confirmed the compliance of all matters set out in Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules.
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Zhejiang Jinda and Zhejiang Jinyuan had entered into a
renewed Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement for a
period of three years from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2023 on the
same terms. As the efficiency of the electricity generated from
the photovoltaic electricity system would normally deteriorate
over time, the amount of the purchased electricity from
Zhejiang Yuyuan is expected to be under HK$3,000,000 per
annum in the future. As all the percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) were less than 5% and the total consideration
less than HK$3,000,000, this continuing connected transaction
of purchasing electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan was subject to
reporting, but not announcement requirement under the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan with an amount of
RMB2,166,000 (2019: RMB2,228,000).

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, there was
no other transaction which needs to be disclosed as a connected
transaction in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
during the Year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.4 and
note 7 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules throughout the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Mr. Ren Weiming (“Mr. Ren”) holds directorships and/or interests
respectively, either directly and/or through Kingdom Creative, in
certain private companies (the “Private Companies”). The Private
Companies are engaged in the silk and/or silk products manufacturing
and/or trading industry, banking and finance leasing (the “Excluded
Business”), which are fundamentally different from the products
manufactured by the Group.

Mr. Ren undertakes, subject to the exceptions mentioned in
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2006 (the
“Prospectus”), that he will not, and will procure that his associates
will not (a) either on his own account or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company, directly or indirectly be
interested or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold an interest
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
in any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the Group's business, those other businesses of the Group as set out
in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or
jurisdiction to which the Group markets or sells its products and/or
in which any member of the Group carries on business mentioned
above from time to time (“Restricted Activity”), or (b) either on his
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, or as a principal, shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise,
directly or indirectly, solicit, interfere with or endeavour to entice
away from any member in the Group any person, firm, company
or organisation who to its or his knowledge is now or has been a
customer, supplier or employee of any member in the Group.
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By reasons of the fact that the Excluded Business does not pose any
direct or indirect actual competition with the Group’s business and
that Mr. Ren has already given an undertaking as above referred
to, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arms’ length from, the Excluded Business as
described above.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Ren has no plan to inject the
aforesaid Excluded Business into the Group.

The Company has received from Kingdom Investment and Mr.
Ren an annual confirmation that it/he has fully complied with its/
his obligations under the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company dated 27 November 2006 during the Year.

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM BUSINESS
MODEL

The Company strives to be one of the largest linen yarn manufacturers
in the world through its commitment to sustainable development and
technical innovation, developing proprietary intellectual property
rights, branding of products and pursuing advanced management for
lean management and excellent performance to generate or preserve
value over a longer term.

The Board periodically reviews the progress made against ESG related
goals and targets to enable the Group’s sustainable development of
business, in order to generate or preserve value over a longer term.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 14 December 2018

(the “Dividend Policy”).

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the annual dividend to be distributed
by the Company to the Shareholders shall be not less than 20% of
the Group’s profit attributable to Shareholders in any financial year,
subject to the criteria set out in the Dividend Policy.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to all
applicable requirements under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Articles.
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In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance; Shareholders’ interests; general business conditions
and strategies; the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans; possible effects on the Group’s
creditworthiness; general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group's business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time
or from time to time. The payment of dividend is also subject to any
restriction under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and any
other applicable laws, rules and regulations, as well as the articles of
association of the Company (as amended from time to time).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group's principal corporate governance practices are set out on
page 58.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 14 May 2021
to Friday, 21 May 2021, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, unregistered holders of shares of the Company shall
ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 13 May 2021.
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, the PRC, 19 March 2021

*  For identification purpose only
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TEERBRS

The Company recognizes the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”)
as its own code of corporate governance.

Except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
as further detailed in the paragraph headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer”, the Company’s corporate governance practices
have complied with all the code provisions on corporate governance
practices during the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company
will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance practice
to ensure the compliance of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by Directors and devised its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities on terms no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the provisions of the
Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020 and up
to the date of this annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of eight Directors, four of whom are executive
Directors, one of whom is non-executive Director and three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The functions and duties
conferred on the Board include: overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance, promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs, convening
Shareholders” meetings and reporting on the work of the Board to the
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings as may be required by the
applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Company’s business plans and investment
plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and final accounts,
formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred on it by the Articles and the applicable laws. The senior
management is delegated with the authority and responsibilities
by the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. The composition of the Board
and attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the Board, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee during the Year under review are as follows:

Board
A
Directors £
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ren Weiming RERELE
(Chairman of the Board) (EZFLLE) 5/5
Mr. Shen Yueming LEBREL 5/5
Mr. Zhang Hongwen RENELE 5/5
Ms. Shen Hong LB L 5/5
Non-executive Director FRITESE
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BERRLE 5/5
Independent non-executive Directors BIUFMTES
Mr. Lau Ying Kit S
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BEZEETE) 5/5
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BRELE
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (EELEZEEETE) 5/5
Mr. Yan Jianmiao BEELE
(Chairman of the Remuneration Commitice) (B Z5 &L /E) 5/5

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board also
held meetings with independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors during the Year.
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TEERBRS

The biographical details of the current Board members are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
page 28 of this annual report. Save as otherwise disclosed, there
is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) between any members of the Board or senior
management of the Company.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise, and the
independent non-executive Directors represented over one-third of
the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent
nonexecutive Directors a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to fulfil their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors
also have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the meetings. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, which records
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed, are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors.
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Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years and is eligible for re-election. In accordance with article
87 of the Articles, Ms. Shen Hong, Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong
Shun Wilson shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, being independent
non-executive Directors for more than nine years, their re-
appointment will be by way of separate resolutions in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be read
in conjunction with, but be distinguished from, the Independent
Auditors” Report on page 80 which states the reporting responsibilities
of the Group’s auditors.

Annual Report and Accounts
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group has used appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.
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Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and the
applicable accounting standards.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief
executive officer”. Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the chairman of the
Company, is also responsible for overseeing the general operations
of the Group. The Board meets regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Company. The Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Company and is conducive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Company to operate
efficiently.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, a non-executive Director, renewed his
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years on 1
January 2019.

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Lau Ying Kit, independent non-
executive Directors, renewed their appointments with the Company
with the same terms for another three years on 1 January 2019.
Mr. Yan Jianmiao was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30
May 2016. Mr. Yan has renewed his appointment with the Company
for a term of three years with similar terms as other independent
nonexecutive Directors with effect on 30 May 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Directors are provided with regular updates on
the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company updates the Directors on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. During
the Year, the Company arranged a training covering topics on latest
changes on corporate governance, Listing Rules and case studies with
topics covering qualified audit opinion, backdoor listing, sufficient
business operation, cash company, disclosure of performance
of major investment, etc., for Directors’ continuous professional
development. All Directors attended the training.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against them. During
the Year, no claim had been made against the Directors and officers of
the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy, the company secretary of
the Company, attended relevant professional training for not less than
15 hours.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference and report their findings and
recommendations to the Board after each meeting of the Board
committees. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2 of this annual report.

TEERRS

EEFEEIRER

FR EFEHENSTEARATNREHARE K
mhEIR BHEFERERSEFEBRTREN
BE- I AEEZBERESSUEFBEX
R BRRIEENH R - FXATIHFLAE
ERMAEBMLTRIKAEMBEREERENR
MR BRERFETRANERFNEEXERLRS
MeFR ARBABEFNRBEERLERZH—
TAB I REEER EHRASHESH KREH
MEEI TERERBEA TR ERLED
RRNEBEE RERF TEREXREBERE
ForREFHHFEZEI -

EERERBENREEREKRAERRE

FRABERBEERE UHBES RS RE
BRYERSFAAREFLBE FRLEEFA
THERDEERSRBERLRE

REME
FR AABNARMERCERECHERD
N RUNSESY AR E S

EFRET

EXECMU=-RBZES DHAELEZED
HFNEEERRREE T UBERETRAZKE
BENEF - ARFNEFEE TMAEZETHIR
ARNEERELERL TESREFEES
CERRNESTERETHERNEBRR -BEF
FETEZEENHEEECSEHNARE Rt
FrBIA8G BRI FERR R B R R M o

BREZZEENEABNABUIFATES &
EELZEENEIRMMELEBHNAFHRFB2RE
FMABIERL

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERERATE

63



Corporate Governance Report

EXEERRS

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the
code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee are to consider and recommend to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Hongwen, Mr. Yan Jianmiao (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
review the remuneration policy and structure and determination of
the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
the senior executives and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Year. At
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved
the remuneration of the Directors, after comparing with that of similar
textile companies listed on the Stock Exchange. The attendance
record of each member of the Remuneration Committee at the said
meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors ERENH

Mr. Zhang Hongwen RIBX ST

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (Chairman) BEBLE (EE)
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee (“NC”) has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the code
provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the NC are
to review the Board’s diversity policy and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, based on skills, knowledge and
experience, to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The
NC also determined the policy for the nomination of Directors and
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
by the NC to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The NC comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shen Yueming, Mr. Lau Ying
Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman of the Nomination
Committee).

One meeting was held during the Year. At the meeting, the NC
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
Board’s diversity policy. The attendance record of each member of the
NC at the said meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors EXMA

Mr. Shen Yueming L EERR ST A

Mr. Lau Ying Kit | ESHS S

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) BREERE (EE)

Nomination Policy

Objective

The NC shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to shareholders for election
as directors including independent non-executive directors of the
Company (“INEDs”) at general meetings or appoint as directors
including INEDs to fill casual vacancies.

The NC may, as it considers appropriate, nominate a number of
candidates more than the number of directors to be appointed or

reappointed at a general meeting, or the number of casual vacancies
to be filled.

The ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of directors
rest with the Board.
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Selection Criteria
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the NC in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

o Reputation for integrity

J Accomplishment and experience in the textile industry
J Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
J Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,

age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive. The NC has the discretion to nominate any person, as it
considers appropriate.

Retiring INEDs are eligible for nomination by the Board to stand for
re-election at a general meeting. For those who have served as INEDs
for a period of 9 consecutive years may be stand for re-election at
a general meeting, subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders at the general meeting. For the avoidance of doubt,
the 9-year period for determining the independence of an INED for
nomination by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting
would count from his/her date of first appointment as an INED until
the date of the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information in a prescribed form, together with their written consent
to be appointed as an INED and to the public disclosure of their
personal data on any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to their standing for election as an INED.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the NC shall call a meeting of the NC, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the NC prior to its meeting. The NC may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.
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For filling a casual vacancy, the NC shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing candidates
to stand for election at a general meeting, the NC shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons
shall not assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand
for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, a circular will
be sent to Shareholders. The circular will set out the names, brief
biographies (including qualifications and relevant experience),
independence, proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the
proposed candidates will be included in the circular to Shareholders.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
Company Secretary.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

As there may be more candidates than the vacancies available, and
the “highest number of votes” method will be used to determine who
shall be elected as an INED.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Board Diversity Review and Policy

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to, textile industry experience,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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During the Year, the NC had reviewed and compared the diversity
of the Board with all the listed companies in Hong Kong, in terms of
number of all directors, number of INEDs, gender and average age.
The NC also reviewed the professional qualification and expertise
of all the Directors. The Board’s composition (together with details
on textile industry experience, age, gender and holding of office in
textile association) are as follows:

Textile Industry

Name experience Age
e BT RAEER Fe
REN Weiming Yes 61
1E4ER =)

SHEN Yueming Yes 59
LR B

ZHANG Hongwen Yes 54
RBX B

SHEN Hong Yes 54
L =)

NGAN Kam Wai Albert Yes 71
BREIE B

LAU Ying Kit No 47
B £

LO Kwong Shun Wilson No 47
REE £

YAN Jianmiao No 55
BEH &=

Measurable objectives
The Company’s measurable objectives of the Board diversity policy
are as follows:

1) At least half of the members of the Board should have textile
industry experience.

2) At least one Director should hold office/honorary title in the
textile association in order to ensure the Company to receive
first-hand information about the development and challenges of
the industry.

3)  Gender is not the key consideration. It will be based on merit

and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the Group
as well as the Group's internal audit function and to provide advice
and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

o to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

J to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

J to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

o to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lau Ying
Kit, Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Yan Jianmiao, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Ying Kit, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee at the
said meetings is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors ERENH

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (Chairman) BIRERE ()
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEENRE

Mr. Yan Jianmiao BEESTE

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings. At the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s relationship
with the external auditor, discussed with the Company’s external
auditor on the tasks performed by them including the nature and
scope of their audit and reporting obligations, and reviewed the terms
of engagement and their remuneration, reviewed the Company’s
final results for the year ended 31 December 2019, interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 and the continuing connected
transactions with the external auditors, and communicated with the
external auditors twice without the presence of the management in
2020. The Audit Committee also reviewed and approved the internal
audit report and considered the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function.

During the Year, the Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the Group’s internal
control functions, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
internal control and risk management, the compliance with the
Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which have
been prepared on a going concern basis, and complies with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. There has been no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a sound and effective internal control
to safeguard Shareholders’ investment and assets of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The Audit Committee is entrusted by the Board
to monitor the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk
management systems on an ongoing basis so as to ensure that the
internal control and risk management systems in place, including the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes,
accounting, internal audit, compliance and financial reporting
functions of the Company are adequate.

The Company has established written policies and procedures
applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness of internal
controls. The Company also has a process for identifying, evaluating
and managing significant risks associated with the achievement of its
operational objective. The day-to-day operation of the Company is
entrusted to the individual department, which is accountable for its
own conduct and performance, and is required to strictly adhere to
the policies set by the Board/Audit Committee. The Company carries
out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems from
time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal
with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

The Company has established an optimized risk management and
internal control system consisting of the Board, Audit Committee,
management team, internal control and all departments of the
Company. In respect of risk management and internal control, all
departments of the Company are the first line of defence, the internal
control and management team are the second line of defence and
the Audit Committee under the Board are the third line of defence.
The Board is ultimately responsible for the development of a sound
risk management and internal control system of the Company and
the effective implementation of risk management, and is the highest
decision-making authority for risk management and internal control
of the Company.

TEERRS

PO BB B 1 K L B B 1R

TABDHEART RARHABERE  RERRK
BUNBRBIRENBARNEE BREEE
REFE FERRAERENIEERER
BERBOIMR EMERA QB HEITAEREE
kEBEERG SERHNER - ETERK
KeBr 15t 8 et  MEREST R AH TR
¥R AE ©

ARBEHEBRNAAEEEMNEEBRK
B BERASEIZEAAN - ARTTRA# A
HEREBEENEERRABNERRERNE
e AR EEEEREEEM P HHEE
SEPINTARRRETHE TRARKETE
FEEZEZEEFIENEER - AR B FEE
REPEIERMAN BREEN T A REHES
KRR EEIEEIRE

ARBERUKEBLENRAREERNEEZER
o ETERESE BEREZET - EEEK R
BEERERATIFA P EREREE KRR
EE AABMAMPIAE —BMER ANBEE
REEBBRAE B MEFEETHEZ
ZERAARBE BB - EFERKEEEE
—E2ENRERREERNEEERAURENE
TRRER IARAFEREEKRANIBEZESN
RERRES

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERERATE

71



72

Corporate Governance Report

EXEERRS

The primary objective of risk management is to have all the business
risks effectively identified, measured, analysed and controlled, such
as having them measured against defined limits, monitored, reported
and managed (including mitigation of risks), followed by the pursuit
of business development on the premise of keeping risks in check.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Audit Committee conducted review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems twice during
the Year including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management.

During the Year, the Company scrutinized and identified potential
risks associated with its corporate structure and business operation by
executing basic risk management procedures in all key operations.
A risk register of the Company was established to gain substantial
information on its overall risk characteristics, providing a solid
foundation for risk management and internal control.

The Company conducted an analysis and assessment on the identified
risks based on their possibility and influence, so as to determine the
risk levels and identify the significant risks faced by the Company.
A summary of key risks identified from the perspective of global
economy, industry and company level was reviewed and discussed
by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Based on review of the results of risk management and internal
control, no material failure or weakness was found in respect of
risk monitoring during the Year. The management procedures of
financial reports and information disclosure of the Company is in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal control of the Company is effective during
the Year and up to date of this annual report.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the SFO and
the overriding principle that any inside information of the Company
should be announced as soon as practicable. The Company reviews
from time to time its internal guidelines on inside information or
potentially price sensitive information with reference to its own and
industry circumstances and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.

The Company’s policy contains a strict prohibition on unauthorized
use of confidential or inside information. The Chairman and the chief
financial officer of the Company are the key spokespersons of the
Company in all external media communications.

The purpose of streamlining the communications of the Group with
the media is to regulate all media communication activities, protect
the interests of the Company and keep inside information strictly
confidential prior to its disclosure.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows:

Service rendered R AR
Audit Services EIZARTE
Tax services RIEARTS

A2 25 B i A
RERZMFERBINBZBAM L K ENER
PRBGFFBNE SN T

Fee paid
BENER
RMB’000

ARBETTT

1,950
84
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EXEERRS

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the 2020
financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors” Report” on page 80. Save as disclosed above and in the
section headed “Independent Auditors” Report”, the Company did not

engage Ernst & Young for any non-audit services during the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the operating results and cash flow for the Year.
The Directors consider that the financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with all applicable accounting standards
and requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates, reasonable information and prudent judgment of the
Board and the management. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements of the Group on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 80 of this
annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(i) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) (including
making proposals/moving a resolution at the EGM to be
called by the Board)

. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, including
putting forward proposals or moving a resolution at the
EGM.
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Eligible Shareholders who wish to require an EGM
to be called by the Board for the purpose of making
proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must
deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed
by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding
in the Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM,
the agenda of the EGM including the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted at the EGM,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity
and the shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will be
verified with the Company’s branch share registrar. If
the Requisition is found to be proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an
EGM within two months and/or include the proposal
or the resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder
at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will
not convene an EGM and/or include the proposal or the
resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the
EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any
outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene
such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the Articles,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.
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(i) Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by post
or email to ir@kingdom-china.com for the attention of the
investors relation department of the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no change in
the constitutional documents of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group firmly believes the importance of communicating with
the investment community and the Shareholders in attaining a high
level of transparency. Since its listing, the Group has maintained
various communication channels with analysts and fund managers
such as one-to-one meetings, telephone communications, and press
releases. The general meetings of the Company provide a platform
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee or if, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent board committee, are available
to answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings. The Company
endeavours to provide timely and accurate information to the
investors to enhance the understanding of the investors about the
linen industry, as well as the business development strategy and
direction of the Group.

The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with
investors and develop greater understanding about the Group for
international investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the
Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

There is no change in the Articles during the Year. An up-to-date
version of the Company’s Articles is also available on the websites of
the Company and that of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2020, the market capitalisation of the Company
was approximately HK$812,284,620 based on 629,678,000 Shares
outstanding at the closing price of HK$1.29 per share.

The details of the substantial shareholders can be found on page 41
of this annual report.

CONTACT DETAILS
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Kingdom Holdings Limited
Level 54 Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)
Fax: +852 3628 2284
Email: ir@kingdom-china.com
DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for
reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The information
does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the Company.
The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by its
shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed
“Shareholders” Rights”.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R S

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 87 to 212, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

B BENHR S

BBt FEE
HRBFFEESRBERFANEXHE  RAHHE
HEHMBRENESERAEBNFTR-EES
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BRI R R
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FEEtEE ZEREBFPEUNAEEEN
Assessment on impairment for non-current assets
FERE B EH B A

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use asset and other
intangible assets was RMB1,127 million which represented
43% of the Group’s total assets. As the carrying amount
of the Group’s net assets was higher than the Company’s
market capitalisation, management performed an
impairment test on its non-current assets. This assessment
requires management to make certain key assumptions,
such as cash flow projections covering a five-year period,
the future growth rate and the discount rate which are
highly judgemental.
RIZZZE+_A=+—H WE -BEI&HE"
ERAREEREMETLEENRESESARE
1,127,000,00070 16 SEEBEMER43% AR &
EEEEFENRESESN SATNME WERE
BEHIFRBEEETRENS - ILREREEE FH
ETHARRR MAFHRRSRETRN  RRERRKRM
WK IFEEH -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FIREETEE @

Key audit matter

FRESHRE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREE PR MAREHEN

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

IERBE R B E TS

The Company provided detailed information of impairment
for non-current assets in note 3 to the financial statements.
EAR R BBRRNAIRMEHIEREERMERNE

I‘%o

We also reviewed the historical financial performance
of the business units and compared it with the original
forecasts when evaluating management’s budgeting
process.
HATERNEBEUNELMBRE TRAHRAR
ALEES ML EREERIERERNBIE -

We have also reviewed the relevant disclosures in the

financial statements.

HFITEE N BIRROVARIKE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises Chairman’s Statement,
Management Discussion and Analysis, Report of the Directors and
Corporate Governance Report included in the Annual Report, other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the
Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to report that fact.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF ZHEMI B e HUMBBRRAENTE
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ()

(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEXRB U ZHMENRENEFEHE B ARHRE

auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai. Be

Ernst & Young £ - TE L3
Certified Public Accountants HE T AT

22/F, CITIC Tower BARIR

1 Tim Mei Avenue TREE 5

Central, Hong Kong FRIEKE2218

19 March 2021 “E-—F=A+AnH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHEmR

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_E_EFF+_FH=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—hE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARETT AREF T
REVENUE A 5 1,057,426 1,499,560
Cost of sales THE AR (950,129) (1,136,293)
Gross profit EF 107,297 363,267
Other income and gains Hthm RS 5 23,208 17,364
Selling and distribution expenses HHE R D iR (38,879) (49,453)
Administrative expenses TERESZ (76,062) (82,061)
Other expenses HE (16,847) (10,327)
Finance costs A5 AR S 6 (36,583) (22,148)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XRMBRABNGED 31 11,123 235
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX pR¥ET (B518) Al 7 (26,743) 216,877
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigiiEe, ) 10 15,602 61,112)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R (§518) EF) (11,141) 155,765
Attributable to: B R7)1EE E,
Owners of the parent BATHEAE A (9,947) 151,468
Non-controlling interests JRIER e (1,194) 4,297
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREERERFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FE1E =A% (B548) &7
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic N 12 RMBAE#(0.02)7T RMBAE0.257¢
Diluted e 12 RMBAE #(0.02)7T RMBA K 10.247T

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAERATE



88

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHEENER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_E_EF+_FH=+—HILFE

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income
that may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

2020 Annual Report —ZE - EFFif

FR (B518) iEF

R ER B EENR D
BEBE
Hfh2miam

MEBINEFHIE AR

FATEKR R

HTIIERE R -
(SYNCIE/Z=PN
FREERI M R

2020 2019
ZEIEF “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
(11,141) 155,765
334 (61)
(10,807) 155,704
(9,613) 151,407
(1,194) 4,297
(10,807) 155,704




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBINRR

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mzt ARBETT ARETFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ENN g 13 1,050,539 1,054,148
Investment properties BEYE 14 5,729 6,329
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 72,084 76,109
Other intangible assets HthimmEE 16 4,158 4,703
Prepayments for equipment REBTANTRIE 22,570 5,602
Deferred tax assets RIERIAES B 17 23,277 5,680
Other non-current assets HthIERBEE 18 407 48,407
Total non-current assets EREEELE 1,178,764 1,200,978
CURRENT ASSETS MEBEE
Inventories 78 19 793,825 795,592
Trade and notes receivables FEUN B 7 IR R R ZE 8 20 375,836 345,813
Prepayments, deposits and SRR o
other receivables HfthfE =18 21 85,947 92,238
Derivative financial instruments TTESRMTA 22 = 198
Pledged deposits BRI 23 32,889 146,168
Cash and cash equivalents BERIEEEEY 23 166,761 144,798
Total current assets MBIE EARE 1,455,258 1,524,807
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBaE
Trade and notes payables B E Z R EN RE 24 198,863 358,817
Other payables and accruals HEMRIBERRIZE A 25 159,501 131,457
Interest-bearing bank and STREIRITREMES
other borrowings 26 962,399 823,482
Dividend payable BARE 188 17
Tax payable EAiRIE 12,762 32,096
Total current liabilities nEERRE 1,333,713 1,345,869
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBBEERE 121,545 178,938
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERERTRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,300,309 1,379,916

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERERLQE



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBINRR

31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2020 2019
—BTER —EB—NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
g3 AR®BTT ARBETIT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERERTBEE
LIABILITIES 1,300,309 1,379,916
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBAR
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE 17 19,870 20,152
Interest-bearing bank and StRIBITRHEAMBEE
other borrowings 26 53,204 78,869
Total non-current liabilities JERB BB 73,074 99,021
Net assets BEEZFE 1,227,235 1,280,895
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of ISYNCIEZ TSNS oy
the parent
Share capital f& s 27 6,329 6,329
Treasury shares EFRD 28 (13,305) (18,493)
Reserves 5 30 1,192,320 1,249,974
1,185,344 1,237,810
Non-controlling interests SRR S 41,891 43,085
Total equity HEmAREE 1,227,235 1,280,895
Ren Weiming Shen Yueming
1E4ERR LB ER
Director Director
BE E=FE
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At31 December 2019

Loss for the year

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transfer from retained profits

Equity-settled share award plan

Transfer of share award reserve
upon the vesting

Final 2019 dividend declared

At 31 December 2020

*

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

RIZ-hE+ZA=1-H
FREE
HEENEENERER
FRZANGAS
ZEERBER
WEREER A REE
RERRBERAREGE
BER-E-NERBRE

RZB-FE+-F=1+-H

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *
RMB1,192,320,000 (2019: RMB1,249,974,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

BEHEmEHR

Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE _FE_ZTHFF _F=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRREEAEE

Share Non-
Issued Share Treasury Merger  Statutory award  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

BEf RipEE FEERIE
ki RNERE EERR  AfRE  ERER B ERRE  RIEH @it [t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARBTT ARETT ARMTr ARETR ARBTT ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
6,329 270,308 (18,493) 196,816 144,757 8,401 (2,99) 632,688 1,237,810 43,085 1,280,895
- - - - - - - (9,947) (9,947) (1,194) (11,141)
- - - - - B 334 - 334 - 334
- - - - - - 334 (9,947) (9,613) (1,194) (10,807)
= = = = 356 = = (356) - - -
- - - - . 4,295) - = (4.295) y (4.295)
- (1,082) 5188 = - (4,106) - - - - -
- - - - - - - (38558) (38558 - (38558)
6,329 269,226 (13,305) 196,816* 145,113* = (2,662)* 583,827% 1,185,344 41,891 1,227,235

ZEFEROZ SR FER RN S HEE
AE#1,192,320,00077 (ZE—NE ANEK
1,249,974,0007T) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

BHEREEFR

Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE T _ZFFf _F=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARRAAEL
Share Share Non-
Issued Share Treasury Merger ~ Statutory option award  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BEfT BRE  RORE Fi322)1
ke RMEE  BERR  AREE  iERG fifé fiff EREE  REE st Ba  RESE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBT ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETn ARBTn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARET:
At31 December 2018 RIB-\E
+ZA=t-H 6,329 268,319 (19,508) 196,816 127,734 2,207 3,567 (2,935) 530,360 1,112,889 40,620 1,153,509
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 R (ERaERSEA)
F16E0FE - - - - - - - - (117) (117) = (117)
At1 January 2019 RIZ-NE-F-H 6,329 268,319 (19,508) 196,816 127,734 2,207 3,567 (2,935) 530243 1,112,772 40,620 1,153,392
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - - - 151468 151468 4297 155765
Exchange differences on HEENBNEREE
translation of foreign operations - - - - - - - 61) - 61) - 61)
Total comprehensive income ENRENEER
for the year - - - - - - - (61) 151468 151,407 4297 155,704
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBAT - - - - - - - - - - (1,832) (1,832)
Transfer from retained profis SRAREEN - = - = 17,03 = = = (17,003) = = =
Equity-settled share award plan Uil s g - - - - - - 5,631 - - 5,631 - 5,631
Transfer of share award reserve REBEBRROREEE
upon the vesting - (218) 1,015 - - - (797) - - - - -
Transfer of share option reserve RRMEBEERELR
upon the forfeiture - 2,207 - - - (2,207) - - - - - -
Final 2018 dividend declared BER_E-\EXERE - - - - - - - - (32,000 (32,000 - (32,000
At31 December 2019 RIE-NE
+ZA=t-H 6,329 270,308 (18,493) 196,816 144757 = 8,401 2,99) 632,688 1,237,810 43,085 1,280,895
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_E_EFF+_FH=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—Z2-2F “EB—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
g3 AR®BTT ARBF T
CASH FLOWS FROM REZHNHRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Profit before tax FRiRET (B548) wmA (26,743) 216,877
Adjustments for: PRI R IBEFELRREE
Fair value losses on derivative MEIAENANEE
instruments B8
— transactions not qualifying as — T EEEE N
hedges 33 5 - (198)
Equity-settled share award expense DU 75 45 B R 1 52 Rh
B 29 (4,295) 5,631
Depreciation e 13,14 74,376 70,667
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERESEITE 15 4,077 3,612
Amortisation of other intangible HAthim 2 & & # 85
assets 16 545 545
(Reversal of provision)/provision for FERE EEEER)
impairment of inventories R (5,602) 17,069
(Gains)/loss on disposal of items of HEWZE BB K& E
property, plant and equipment EHE (@) /B8 (2,755) 1,374
Provision for impairment of trade FEW B 7 BR TR (B
receivables e 20 59 2,014
(Write-off of)/provision for MIZE~ R BB I st
impairment of property, (sE) ORERE
plant and equipment 13 (6,173) 6,173
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KRMBEABR
B 37 11,123) (235)
Finance costs BT AR 6 36,583 22,148
Bank interest income SRITHRIE WA 5 (875) (1,051)
58,074 344,626
Increase in inventories FEIEmnm (13,693) (255,574)
Increase in trade and notes receivable — FEUE 5 BRFR K
eI SRR N (30,082) (53,360)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TE(I R 1 K EAhFEUR
deposits and other receivables IR, () 20,976 (35,858)
Proceeds from pledged deposits BRI PTG RIS 131,524 176,545
New pledged deposits MEEIRMER (92,133) (193,673)
Decrease in derivative financial assets 74 & RE &R/ 198 =
Decrease in derivative financial TEERae R
liabilities - (3,438)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and notes  FE1Y B2 5 BR RV FE (T T2 4%
payables GRiZl) /11 (158,063) 113,142
Increase in other payables and accruals — E (TR K
RIZERE 60,444 10,468
Cash (used in)/generated from e (PR EENRE
operations (22,755) 102,878
Interest received BUFH 2 875 1,051
Income tax paid [EANIFIEST i (22,391) (51,823)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from #8&5ES8) (FT )/ EEN
operating activities BEREF58 (44,271) 52,106
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHREFRER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_E_EF+_FH=+—HILFE

Notes
bz

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REFHNHEERE

BEME -BERRE
HEUKREBLEE
REBIAITUR

Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets
Prepayments for equipment
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - -BERZE
property, plant and equipment EHEKPTISRIA
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments for 185 Kz - #th {8 A FE (S
a building and a land use right FIEREL (g m)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—XRNBELF 31

&é/é@]ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Eqiﬁ,ﬁﬁui

Net cash flows used in investing

activities PER
CASH FLOWS FROM MEESNRESRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans WMSIRITEMN
Repayment of bank loans BIRIRITER
Proceeds from pledged deposits BRI ERB PR ISIE
New pledged deposits g B ER
Interest paid BEAHE
Principal portion of lease payments HERIBENAE I D 32(b)
Dividends paid BfRE

Net cash flows generated from METHELNRTRE
financing activities PER

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH R&ERRSZEWILmMm

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Ri) 7B %8

Cash and cash equivalents at FNREKREEEEY
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate XS &P
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRERFAEEEY

AT END OF YEAR

94 2020 Annual Report —Z T FFH

2020 2019
—E2TTHF —EB-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
(72,979) (305,413)
(22,570) (5,602)
13,837 2,450
48,000 (48,000
(229) 5,505
(33,941) (351,060)
1,519,808 1,182,946
(1,406,032) (851,691)
167,278 124,200
(93,390) (184,383)
47,351) (35,211)
(2,081) (1,890)
(38,387) (31,984)
99,845 201,987
21,633 (96,967)
144,798 241,826
330 (61)
166,761 144,798




Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Kingdom Holdings Limited was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 21
July 2006. The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12
December 2006.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of linen yarn.

The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands; and the principal place of business is located
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong

1.

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

NEAREERER
TEERERRADNR_ZEZNELA
Tt+—HEHENEEMNIAEREE
[RAB - ARABRMIR_-_EETRE+_A
+THEEABMAERZFBRAR (MHZ
Frl) £

FEBFEUFEERIBERRMY -

AN BV 3 SS B Mk 2 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands; EF &
EEMMAIUNEEEFTRKERISIRG

Kong.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

PAGIETE

Overseas Kingdom Limited

Kingdom Group Holdings Limited

(“Hong Kong Kingdom”)
SEEEZRERAT
(EAEE)

Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.
MIETERERAR

Place and date of
establishment

and nature of

legal entity

R IL 3 R B HA R
BEERNMEE

British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)
26 July 2006

HEELEE
(EBERuEE))
“ZZRFtAZ+RH

Hong Kong, China
10 September 2004
FEEE
“EEMEAATH

PRC
18 March 2003
Wholly foreign owned
enterprise

hE
“EE=F=H+/\R
IEBELE

M54

BRNRBARNER
RRABNBRABFBEMT

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

registered Percentage of equity
share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BETEER VNG|
mfE/ RS EiEEZEDLL TBEH
Direct Indirect
Ei# %
HK$0.01/HK$500 100% - Investment holding
0.01787T,/500%8 7 REER
HK$1,250,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
1,250,00078 75 trading
REZERRER
US$60,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
60,000,000 75 linen yarns
T ERHE DR

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAERATE

95



96

Notes to Financial Statements

M F5 SR R MY 5

31 December 2020 —Z&FE_ZFF+_H=

+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Name of company

G

Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.
IHETEMARRAR

Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd.
MWIETMAERRAE

Kingdom Europe S.R.L.

Kingdom (Ethiopia) Linen PLC
(TKingdom (Ethiopia) J

Heilongjiang Jinda Flax Hemp
Co., Ltd.
BRISEMRFERAT

2020 Annual Report —ZE - EFFif

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Place and date of
establishment

and nature of registered
legal entity share capital
BUILtRE R B HA R BETEER
AEERNMEE mfE/ RS
PRC US$18,500,000
17 October 2003 18,500,000 75
Limited liability company
hE
“ZR=FE+A+ER
BRAR
PRC RMB100,000,000
28 May 2012 AE100,000,0007T
Limited liability company
2l
“2—HRA°FN\E
BRAR
Italy EUR502,646
7 September 2007 50264617z
BAR
“Z2tENALA
Ethiopia US$21,864,959
16 July 2014 RMB88,253,711
REHILE 21,864,959% 7%
“E-MELA+AH AE#88,253,71178
PRC RMB110,000,000
11 March 2016 AE#110,000,0007T
Limited liability company
il
“2—E=A+—-H>
BRAR

AT REBRER @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

b UNC|
EEESE T
Direct Indirect

Big %

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 73%

Principal activities

TEEH

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EERHE LR

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EERHE LR

Trading
8%

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EERHE LR

Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns

EERHE LR



Notes to Financial Statements

RA 5 ER R MY 5

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Name of company

R

Kingdom Tiansheng (Shanghai)
Trading Co., Ltd.
TERR (L) BEERAR

Zhejiang Kingdom REEL Textile
Co. Ltd.
IEEREHHERAR

Heilongjiang Industrial Hemp Supply
Chain Management Co., Ltd

BRI ETEAMERESE
BRAR

Place and date of
establishment

and nature of

legal entity

PR IL 33 R B EA R
BEBERNME

PRC
11 October 2019
Limited liability company
I
—2-nEHAT-B
BRAR

PRC
15 June 2020
Limited liability company
I
“ETRFRATER.
BRAR

PRC
12 June 2020
Limited liability
company

a2l
= =
BRAR

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BETEER
mfE/ k%

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007¢

RMB20,000,000
AE#20,000,0007¢

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,00075

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

AEIREBER @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

YN
EESE T
Direct Indirect

Big %

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

TEEH

Trading
8%

Trading
8%

Sales of industrial hemp

HETE KR

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAERATE
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Notes to Financial Statements

M F5 SR R MY 5

31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000), except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

2020 Annual Report —Z T FFH
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

RBEE @)

EHEE@®
FTEEERAREEEEREGE #m W
A HEREXREBRE AT ZE M
MIREREHN S IR B2 8IEHE o

8B BB B RER L XA = TR
BTREP-—RRZHELIRENE  AAE
BEEMTILHERTERNRENR B
AEEEREDNES LEIEER
REmR 5 Ao

AEELRENWBATNESE Bl
KIEER)ZMBAENEE (BEEHE)
REME ()ERFFERME RN IREEER
(i m N BB RS E A28 5 KB
SBOFFRABHAREE  (VERFRERE
NARBERGVBEFEFNELEENE
BRECES AL o B E N H A 2 E W e R R
AEBRBGBOZRABNAERERLE
FHEENAGRAMRENBEREEEH
DEERTNMAREREN WEA) -
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Notes to Financial Statements

M F5 SR R MY 5

31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

100

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Definition of Material
IAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described
below:

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the “Conceptual Framework”)

The Conceptual Framework sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework
is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The
Conceptual Framework did not have any significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H
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Notes to Financial Statements

M F5 SR R MY 5

31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier
application permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no
monthly lease payments for the leases of the Group’s plant and
machinery have been reduced or waived by the lessors upon
reducing the scale of production as a result of the pandemic or
other changes to the terms of the leases. The Group has early
adopted the amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected not to
apply lease modification accounting for any rent concessions
granted by the lessors as a result of the pandemic during the
year ended 31 December 2020. The amendment did not
have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or
both. The amendments did not have any significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Amendments to IFRS 9, Framework?
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2’
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’®
Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®*®
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current’
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use’

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract®
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRSs 2018-2020 IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 4717
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June
2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37
or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase
2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the
effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements
of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but
entities are not required to restate the comparative information.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS
16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (continued)

The Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in various Interbank Offered Rates as at 31
December 2020. The Group expects that no significant
modification gain or loss will arise as a result of applying the
amendments to these changes.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

2.3

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

B N8 #R 18 I8 ok 4 0B (B PR B 75 R
HEER D @

(BERE RN F165RNVIET Y E
BB R R * #EE I HIFr s 7k B
(R E SR ) F165ENET AR ILER
RME - -BERRBEENRATRE
EEIEEERENAEARE (BEUE
BURM) BEPEEN2E L EFMSRIE
BRRHETMNZFEENMERERZ
FHEENNAES AZHBE RFET K
RIEZ"F-A—HAZERGBNEE
HEEX TEENEAERENE RKA
ZEFE AN BRERMZINRFEHE
IS 2 B HERNYE - BE IR
wEE - AFFIRFER ZFE R
TEHAERNMBERRENENEAR
o

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAERATE

107



108

Notes to Financial Statements

M F5 SR R MY 5

31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and
are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Amendments
to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments
that are expected to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative
Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying IFRS 16.
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over
the Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies;

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third party and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Plant and buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9.0%
Office equipment 18.0%
Motor vehicles 22.5%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using
the cost model. The initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of land and buildings that are leased out are
accounted for using the same measurement and depreciation
methods as those of plant and buildings.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The useful life of the intangible assets
of the Group is 20 years.
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

2020 Annual Report —Z T FFH

24 FETHHEREME @

o s
FREMARAEREERERTRAN

MEmERBBMMEENRAZIGE T
BRTEREALIFELRE - ZEBAHE
TEMZBRELEEUEERNLERR
ERMER/AT AEEEETHZEE
WEE MENERNLEZREE ; %A
EEARRUAELESENT ; STHZE
BNTHEREREEAENAIEME
EHRBBRETAERZ TN EILLERE
BEMMEMXEEERZHE-

3 3 A 3% Bl 7S DA Bl 7 Ot A ) R 1B S 1R 5
iR WU B AERMERNBEEFH (B
HRABMELEEBHES T8BRAEL
F) WEiH -

HE
FEERSHRERTILEENREANE
FHEE-HENRBRIRAEMEFE—R
R A IEFIE R E R EENEF B
BHRRNESHEE

FEREBABAN
AEBHPAEHEE (EEHBEERD K
B-HANER L AEBEIDEER
BUFHAERE MEREEEEER
TRRAE ERIRER o



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Plant and buildings 2 to 12 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and notes receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and cross-currency swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit
or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods.

Sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps

Revenue from the sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps is
recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is
transferred to the customers, generally upon delivery of the
goods.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award plan for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. Further details are given in note 29 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Pension scheme

Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group has participated
in a local municipal government pension scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees to the
Scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
There are no provisions under the Scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item measured at fair
value (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

There is no significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements arising from the judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, made by management
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of non-current assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

The recoverable amount of the non-current assets of
the Group has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by management. The assumption that has
the most significant impact on the determination of the
recoverable amount of its assets is the discount rate. The
pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
as at 31 December 2020 was 22%.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

(d)

Write-down of inventories

The Group’s inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The Group writes down
its inventories based on estimates of the realisable
value with reference to the age and conditions of the
inventories, together with the economic circumstances
on the marketability of such inventories. Inventories will
be reviewed annually for write-down, if appropriate.
The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2020 was RMB793,825,000 (2019: RMB795,592,000).
Further details are contained in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and notes
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade and notes receivables. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, customer type and rating, coverage by letters
of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

(e)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and notes
receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade and notes receivables is disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.

Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives or management will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2020
was RMB1,050,539,000 (2019: RMB1,054,148,000).
Further details are contained in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one

single business unit that is primarily the manufacture and
sale of linen yarns. Management reviews the consolidated
results when making decisions about allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group. Accordingly, no

segment analysis is presented.

Geographical information

(a)

Revenue from external customers

An analysis of the Group’s geographical information on
revenue attributed to the regions on the basis of customer

locations for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set

out in the following table:
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Revenue from
external customers

Mainland China
European Union
Non-European Union countries

(b)  Non-current assets

Mainland China
Ethiopia

eIk
BREZEY
FFERERE

R A
REM L

KEIMERE B URA
2020 2019
—EEHE —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARHFIT
476,377 650,576
302,630 349,183
278,419 499,801
1,057,426 1,499,560

b) IERBEE

2020 2019
—ECEE —E—-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARHFIT
800,801 869,898
354,686 325,400
1,155,487 1,195,298
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (continued)

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10 percent or more of the Group’s
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue from contracts with customers, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents the sales value of linen yarn,
hemp yarn and scraps, net of sales tax and deduction of any
sales discounts and returns. The performance obligation is
satisfied upon delivery of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps and
payment is generally due within 30 to 150 days from delivery,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers, other
income and gains is as follows:

4.

KEDEER @

MIBEE @
EXFENIERBEEERLEREE (&
BT A RIRERIBE ERRIN TR ©

EREERTRFNEHR

RBEE_ZT-ZTFE+"RA=+—HLE
EriiERE -SSP ETHNHERAMGS
EFEBBA10%IULE (CE—REFE 8| -

WA ~ Efth i e B 15 2
ZERENWA (RENAEEE EER) f55 R
M~ KRR R BE R HEEE » RIS
MEMEETEHHEERNRERE - BHEE
78 B R AD ~ RRRAD B BE LBy ST A% » BRRIR
BERBER(EI0E150BAZA EHE
Fi@EARNMRIA

EREHWA Bt m &S m a2 7 1
—F

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREETFTT
Type of goods am@ms

Sales of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps 5% 88 fif &) ~ KR4 K EE 1,057,426 1,499,560

Timing of revenue recognition N ERY ST
Goods transferred at a point in time AR —FRREENE R 1,057,426 1,499,560

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period was RMB14,935,000
(2019: RMB24,036,000).
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5.

Other income

Bank interest income
Government grants
Others

Gains

Gain from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Foreign exchange gains, net

Fair value gains on derivative financial
instruments, net

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities

Total interest expense on financial liabilities

not at fair value through profit or loss

Less: Interest capitalised

Notes to Financial Statements
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B 2L
z

UT A ~ Efth o B2 15 2 4

2020 2019
=t L e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
875 1,051
16,598 8,161
2,980 2,768
20,453 11,980
2,755 -

- 5,186

- 198

23,208 17,364
2020 2019
=t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T
46,881 35,003
470 208

47,351 35,211
(10,768) (13,063)
36,583 22,148
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7. LOSS/(PROFIT) BEFORE TAX 7. BRMAIEIR  (EF)
The Group's loss/(profit) before tax is arrived at after charging/ NEEBRRATEGE GEF)) K0k (Gt
(crediting): A TIIRIERBE !
2020 2019
ZEZEHF “E-hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
LhgEs ARBTT ARBTF T
Cost of inventories sold HEFEMA 950,129 1,136,293
Depreciation TEE 13, 14 74,376 70,667
Depreciation of right-of-use asset ~ EFREZENTE 15(a) 4,077 3,612
Amortisation of other intangible assets E 2 &5 E= 164 16 545 545
Research and development (“‘R&D”) FFZE R 2 (THE5)) B2
expenses 16,780 14,998
Lease payment not included in the KT AFAEESEFHEN 15(c)
measurement of lease liabilities HEMRIE 604 737
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEMEN & 1,950 1,950
Employee benefit expense EERAMES (BEEER
(including directors’” and chief KT ASHH)
executive’s remuneration):
Wages, salaries and other benefits T ~ ¥ K E & F] 175,025 184,237
Pension scheme contributions BT B 13,494 14,204
(Reversal of)/accrual of equity-settled LA % 45 B A 15 22BN FA 2 29
share award expense (BEE) 5HE (4,295) 5,631
184,224 204,072
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ JMNEZEZE > JF4E 14,700 (5,186)
Fair value gain on derivative METAENAABERSR
instruments
— transactions not qualifying —TFEERIEH AN S
as hedges = (198)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of ~ HE¥* MEKKRHEER
property, plant and equipment (8m) /518 (2,755) 1,374
(Reversal of provision)/provision for FERE (B EERD) #E
impairment of inventories (5,602) 17,069
Provision for impairment of trade ~ FEUREE 5 ARFUBE R 20
receivables 59 2,014
(Write-off of)/provision for Y2 BB B R ERE (ilEE) 13
impairment of property, S B
plant and equipment (6,173) 6,173
Finance costs 2R DN 36,583 22,148
Bank interest income RITH A (875) (1,051)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWBARTNEm 31 (11,123) 235
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFRZESITHAEZMN
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2

of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

FARELDRIBE(ABEAD) 5
383(1)(@)~ (b)~ (O ROIFUR (AT WEE
EHHER) RO B2MIRBNEERES
TERABHMIMT :

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019

—ECEH “E—hE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT AREETF T

Fees e 437 437
Other emoluments: HA £

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e BRI REYHIR 3,480 3,600

Pension scheme contributions BIRNE B 90 135

4,007 4,172

(@)

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

@ WIIFRTESF

FRABBILFATEEZTNEE

during the year were as follows: LI
2020 2019
—EIEE —ENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREF T
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BT L 125 125
Mr. Yan Jianmiao BRIE A E 104 104
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE 104 104
333 333

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2019: Nil).

FRLEBMNBIIFRTESHEMME

—ENE o
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE'S 8. EFKESITHAEFHFMN@
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and b) BITESF -FRTEERESIT
the chief executive BAE
2020 —E-=E
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

frkz 2R BE
e REWIE SRR #r M A EE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBETR ARBTR ARETR

Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Ren Weiming* {EHEBR A+ = 1,500 = 1,500
Mr. Shen Yueming TLERBH S A = 750 45 795
Mr. Zhang Hongwen SRIEN A - 750 45 795
Ms. Shen Hong LR Z L = 480 = 480
- 3,480 90 3,570
Non-executive director EHRITES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BBEERE 104 = = 104
104 - - 104

104 3,480 90 3,674
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8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors, non-executive director and

the chief executive (continued)

2019

Notes to Financial Statements
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BAE @
—E—hEF
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions remuneration
g 2L BhRE
wEe MBYNG TR FrEfARzE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR

Executive directors HITES
Mr. Ren Weiming* EMERRS R L - 1,500 45 1,545
Mr. Shen Yueming TLEEBH SR A = 750 45 795
Mr. Zhang Hongwen SRIEN A - 750 45 795
Ms. Shen Hong B = 600 - 600
= 3,600 135 3,735
Non-executive director ERITES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BRETERE 104 - - 104
104 - - 104
104 3,600 135 3,839
% Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as an executive director of z BARRNBRITESIEMHERLE I

the Company, is also the chief executive officer of the

Company.

ERREITHHE S,
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.
The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2018: four) directors including the chief executive, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2018:
one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REBYH SR

Share award plan (note 29) B1n £ =t &) (H75229)
Pension scheme contributions BIREFT B

The remuneration of the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employee fell within the following band:

AR #1,000,001 7=
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR #1,500,0007T

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the
directors and chief executive, or any of the non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration (2019: None). None of the directors
and the chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees received any payment
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2019: None).
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LaEEHMNES
FR-hEeEFMESSEDNS (ZF
—N\F ER) EF EFEERSTERA
& HErMsH IR EN EXXMIEE8 - R 87 T
— & (CE-N\F—R)IIFFRDVEFAR
SITHABNERSHMESNFHFMFBEL
T

2020 2019
= e
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETTT

1,303 1,329
(82) 101
16 16

1,237 1,446

FEERFRSTHABNRSHIES
BUF BN ER I A TN EEE -

Number of employees

EEAH
2020 2019
—E°EF S
1 1

REBEE_ET-_ZTF+_F=+—HIH
E BEESARSTHRAEREMIEE
ERIERSTHAENRSHNESNE
NEERETAHFN (CE—NE &) o
BEEEREETBAENEAEEER
RS THAEBNRESFMNESERAER
W ER AR AT FR I8 LUK 5| B 0 A A 2 [ 3% 74 0
ATEBREAREISEABRHE CF
—NEF ) o



10.

Notes to Financial Statements

INCOME TAX

Major components of the Group’s income tax (credit)/expense

for the year are as follows:

Current — Mainland China

BIER—h B AR

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

FRig
AEBRFEANAER (ER) HXTIE
HBWT :

— Charge for the year —FAXZH

— Overprovision in respect of prior years — BT FEBEEE
Current — Hong Kong BIHR— &

— Charge for the year —FEARZH

— (Overprovision)/underprovision in

—BEFE (BEERE)

respect of prior years BETE
Current — Italy BIER— = KA
— Charge for the year —FASLH

Deferred (note 17)

Total tax (credit)/charge for the year

(ii)

ESE (aE17)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the
British Virgin Islands.

In accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
which was approved and became effective on 1 January
2008, the provision for current income tax of Mainland
China has been based on a statutory rate of 25% of the
assessable profits of the Company for the year, except
for Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Jinda”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.
Zhejiang Jinda obtained the High-new Technology
Certificate for the years from 2019 to 2022 and was
entitled to a tax rate of 15%.

FRINE (%) LB

2020 2019
—ECERF —_E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
19 50,318

(36) (47)

3,069 3,366

(789) 604

14 1,545

(17,879) 5,326
(15,602) 61,112

(i) REFASHERABEULESHA
RER AEBBAGMASESN
REBERLESERMER

i)y HBEEEBIN_ZZN\NE—H—
HAEMW (PR B EMEIRE) » BE
ABEENEAFTSNBEEREBEERLK
NE BRI G I225% % EMR K5t
BEoEAEEN—RHEEE2ERNBA
BileEDIMABRAR (MlE
Z) BN MISERER _E—AN
FEECETE T _ERXEFENSHE
M08 Al Z B 15%RE o
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 8.25% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong up to HK$2 million. Assessable profits over
HK$2 million are subject to a tax rate of 16.5%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Italy, the Group
is subject to tax at an income tax rate of 28.82%, which
comprises the Italy Corporate Income Tax at 24% and the
Italy Regional Income Tax at 4.82%.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate
is as follows:

10. FR1&

(iii)

(iv)

R @
EBNERIENEBEENESZ 2R
BBt BRG] U8.25%IR
TR - BA2A BB THERR
A B 6.5%MIFR K75 o

RIBER AR EOER N EB R
28.82% R R BMFTISH > EP B IEE
24% M BRI ERMEZEMRSR K
14.82% I Kt B R AT &EFTIS
A o

BN B RENED B A B LR
WEZEBREERZERXAESR
RRERRANEN B IER S > BIRE
BRIRERSAENRNEMBIARAT !

(Loss)/profit before tax

Tax at an applicable tax rate of 25%
Effect of different/beneficial tax rates
(Overprovision)/underprovison
in respect of prior years
Income not subject to tax
Tax losses not recognised
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax credit arising from additional
deduction of R&D expenditures of
Mainland China subsidiaries
(Reversal of)/Accrual of
withholding tax liability

Total tax (credit)/charge for the year
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2020 2019
—ETEHE —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANEHET 7T
BrRET (B548) im A (26,743) 216,877
B R25% M E 5T E IR A (6,685) 54,219
TE/1BERERE (2,864) (1,163)
BEEE (BEEE) BETE
(825) 557
REFERBUW R (4,233) (1,705)
RIERNIRIERE 1,160 -
AR 2,218 2,509
PR B A R i 8 /A B B 25 B s N 5130
MELENRERSR
(2,498) (2,065)
EINNas @EE) sHE
(1,875) 8,760
FERIRIE (KR L% (15,602) 61,112




11.

12.

Notes to Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

Proposed final — Nil

(2019: HK7.0 cents) per ordinary share ==

At the meeting of the board of directors of the Company
held on 19 March 2021, no payment of final dividend was
recommended for the year ended 31 December 2020.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 614,569,000 (2019: 610,881,000) in issue during the year,
as adjusted to reflect the treasury shares vested during the year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic loss per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares.

BEARRE -8R
— N 1 7.074L)

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

11. IR
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARIEF T

=B E
= 39,484

12.

B —F=ZBt+ABRTHNERT
EFxgga b FTEZNAE_T &
TZA=t+—HLEFEERMEMRAR
I%\o

BRATRLERESFEAERGER
(8518) &7
BREKREENLRES AR S ERERR
BABGLFABEEBRERNBETEER
A H8614,569,00088 (ZF—H 4 :
610,881,0008%) 5t& > M E1F H 385 L Bt
FREFEBHEFRS

Sk#EERANDRESATERRERR
BEABGEERNBERFE - SAERERANE
BRMEFHHEDFACETSEREE
EAESRERBEMEREER) > X
RBEREBHETBTEBRBEASETRE
ARRSEBREEEZTHEBRMNE

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERERLQE

151



152

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO  12.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted loss/earnings per share
amounts are based on:

(Loss)/Earnings attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent used in the
(8518 /&F

basic loss/earnings per share calculation

Shares iab]
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used in the

basic loss/earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:

Share options ARt
Share award plan B 52 Bh 5t 21

2020 Annual Report —ZE - E&F £33}

BATIEEREZRBEAELER
(B548) BF @

SREARBESE BANHNFAES M
T

Rt ESREREE BFIN
BRAEEBREDTA ARG

Rt EEREXRER BTN
FREHITEERMNETHH

BErE-LERINETIOH

2020 2019

—ECEE “E—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREF T

9,947) 151,468
Number of shares

R EE

2020 2019

—BoBE  CBNF

000 ‘000

Th% TR

614,569 610,881

- 10,608

15,079 18,767

629,648 640,256
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME -BERRKE
31 December 2020 —EZEH+°A=+—H
Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings ~ Machinery  equipment vehicles improvements i progress Total
EtYES
BERET HE  NAERE "E & TEIR st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ABRTT  ARETR ARRTRT ARETR ARRTR  ARETR ARETR

At 31 December 2019 and RIB—hE
at 1 January 2020: +ZA=+-8k
“2°2F-F-H:
Cost 7% 405,042 719,870 117,883 11,480 18,005 431,948 1,704,228
Accumulated depreciation SatiTERAE
and impairment (135,080) (441,987) (52,514) (8,914) (11,585) = (650,080)
Net carrying amount IREFE 269,962 277,883 65,369 2,566 6,420 431,948 1,054,148
At 1 January 2020, net of RZZE_EF-H-H>
accumulated depreciation MERETE 269,962 277,883 65,369 2,566 6,420 431,948 1,054,148
Additions HE 13,994 15,862 2,780 738 4,520 51,455 89,349
Depreciation provided ENFERE
during the year (20,623) (39,070) (10,676) (549) (2,858) - (73,776)
Transfers g 31,740 51,953 8,595 = = (92,289) =
Disposals HE - (9,435) (855) 43) = (749) (11,082)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FHBLRE (9,452) (4,247) (111) (458) o) = (14.277)
Impairment written off A - 6,173 - - - - 6,173
Exchange realignment ERBEE - 3 1 - - S 4
At 31 December 2020, net of RIB-EE
accumulated depreciation +ZB=+-8’
NBERTE 285,621 299,122 65,103 2,254 8,073 390,366 1,050,539
At 31 December 2020: RIZZEE
+ZA=+-A1:
Cost [ 431,088 711,207 120,631 10,367 22,373 390,366 1,686,032
Accumulated depreciation REtie (145,467) (412,085) (55,528) (8,113) (14,300) = (635,493)
Net carrying amount IREFE 285,621 299,122 65,103 2,254 8,073 390,366 1,050,539
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018 and
at 1 January 2019:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2019, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions
Depreciation provided

during the year
Transfers
Disposals
Disposal of a subsidiary
Impairment provision
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019, net of

accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2019:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment provision

Net carrying amount

RIZ-N\E
+ZA=+-8k

“Z-n&-A-R:

A
RAE

REFE

RZE-HE-R-B
RRGTE
e
ERRERRE

g

HE
HE-FMEAT
BB
ERHE

RIF-NE
T2A=+-8
MBREHTE

RIE-AE
+ZA=+-R:
A
RiHE
AEEE

REFE

13. MIZE - -BEKRRE @

—®—nE+ZA=+—H

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction

buildings Machinery equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
EAELES

BERET HE  BAERE HE 235 ZETR 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT AR%TR ARETz ARETT ARETn ARET:
391,982 703,113 119,345 10,847 24385 153,822 1,403,494
(116281)  (408,823) (47,836) (10,172) (16,604) - (599,716)
275,701 294,290 71,509 675 7,781 153,822 803,778
275,701 294,290 71,509 675 7,781 153,822 803,778
14,662 11,345 3,075 2,158 2,690 301,685 335,615
(19,324) (35,985) (10,399) (318) (4,041) - (70,067
3,400 15,459 2,495 91 - (21,445) -
(742) (1,055) (1,188) (40) (10) (789) (3,824
(3,735) - (121) - - (1,325) (5,181)
- 6,173) - - - - 6,173)
- 2 ) - - - -
269,962 277,883 65,369 2,566 6,420 431,948 1,054,148
405,042 719,870 117,883 11,480 18,005 431,948 1,704,228
(135,080) (435,814) (52,514) (8,914) (11,585) - (643,907)
- (6,173) - - - - (6,173)
269,962 277,883 65,369 2,566 6,420 431,948 1,054,148

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB252,403,000 (2019: RMB194,209,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in notes 26(i)

and 26(ii).
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AT EE26(1) &26(i1)FTE > §
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+ZB=+—H AEEREFENAR
#0252,403,00070 (CE—NF : AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

14. KEYE

2020 2019

ZEZEHF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREETFTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HNREEEE 6,329 6,929
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (600) (600)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZRB=+—HNKRETE 5,729 6,329

The Group's investment properties are commercial properties
in Shanghai and Jiaxing, the PRC. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of
one class of asset, i.e., commercial, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the property. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2020 based on
valuations performed by Haiyan Zhonglian Asset Assessment
Limited Corporation and Jiaxing Dongxing Asset Assessment
Firm (LLP), independent professionally qualified valuers, at
RMB19,551,000. Each year, the Group’s property manager and
the chief financial officer decide, after approval from the audit
committee, to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group's investment properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

NREBWREYEDUNTEEEKREH
NEBYE KRB EEREREYEDN
HE YRR BEERBEYER—EE
EME BB R 2E2F+ 24
—t+—HB > AEEREBILIEZEXESERKME
BB EETHAERAT hEER
BEENHER (EEEH) FETHG
EIfF BAEENKREYESEHHES
ANE#19,551,0007c c &5 » REBM Y
RIBRTFREERESEZEZESTHHE
BOETWRE—RIELEMESTHAK
EENKLEYEETINEBEE - FIEITE
BEMENH BE BT HERTE
HEIKHEE©

REYERKCEHERATE =7 HE
— DB G HMBREN 158 -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

KEYE @

DRBESHEE
TRERAEFBREYEN A AEBEE
LTRS¢

14.

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020 using
FHEUTEEN-_S-8F+-HB=+—H

EITNAREESE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RiERETS EATEE EXFUER
HERME WAE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—F) (€ ) EFE=B) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARBTFRT ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement for: 4B A REEE ¢
Commercial properties [ElaEEYES - - 19,551 19,551
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2019 using
RAUTEERZS—NFEF+A=+—H
ETHNANEESE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
REETE EATRE EXTHEE
BRE BmAE AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E—R) EZR) (B=kE) a5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AREFRT ARBTR
Recurring fair value measurement for: &S ARBEE :
Commercial properties )=k ES = = 20,545 20,545
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14.

Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14.
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

REWE @
DABEFRIRE@®
EW’@ﬁFTEquEE% BRE_E
BHEER TEEAS=EXES
BHCE-NE 8-

||| gl
|l N

U AREYEEEFRBNGEER ERE
BWABNHRE

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
HERE ERFABERBAE FEEMETI9H
2020 2019
“ECEH —EhEF
Shanghai Commercial Discounted Estimated rental value RMB192 RMB192
Property | cash flow method (per sq. m. and per month)
Mabi=TiE) sk E S RERENTE fastiA=EE AR®192t  ARE1927T
(BFAARKREAR)
Rent growth (p.a.) 3%-5% 3%-5%
HEER (BF)
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
REEEX = =
Discount rate 3.24% 3.28%

IBLRS

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERERLQE
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation techniques

HEDZ

Discounted cash flow
method
BERSITIRE

Shanghai Commercial
Property Il

EisEBEYEI

Jiaxing Commercial Discounted cash flow

Property method
EA N LYES REREWHE

2020 Annual Report —Z T FFH

14. BEYE w

RABEFRERE®

Significant unobservable inputs

ERFABERBAE

Estimated rental value
(per sq. m. and per month)
et e EE
BFLEAREH)

Rent growth (p.a.)
HEE R (BF)

Long term vacancy rate
RHEZEER

Discount rate

EIBLEES

Estimated rental value
(per sq. m. and per month)
st HEEE
(BFAARKRER)

Rent growth (p.a.)
HEE R (BF)

Long term vacancy rate
RAZEEX

Discount rate

R

Range or weighted average

HE S METFI9E
2020 2019
—ECEE “E-NF
RMB217 RMB217
AR¥2177T AR #2177
3%-5% 3%-5%
Nil Nil
= 3
3.24% 3.28%
2020 2019
—ECEE “E-NF
RMB62 RMB64
AR¥627T AR #6475
Nil Nil
% 3
Nil Nil
= £33
6.90% 6.90%
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Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate
is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and differs
from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

14.

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

KEYE @

AABEFREE @
RIBEREREWNIR L AABENLKEE
ENEmiiNaREEENFEREE (8
ERHEEBERRIFER NRKETHETe
ZHES R EERN—ERIBER=E
RTERl e TG T E M ITIR R E AR FER IR
%ﬁ%LX@EEiﬂ%ié;*E%ﬁE@H&E,ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
B RHWaBEREEBAT B RERIT
/o

R mE N RFER B Bom AR R HB A
BF 75 F B WA = i 5T ~ B AV AR TR e A8 R
EHR - BRNBMMESHRE-BES E’JH
EBRERMISTA EMYEENNEN) &
BorHiRERERBREINRES Z_
AW EIFES  IKBRIBR TR SRR HEE
A-REMAERAREMKSENERE
AtHE Z—ERTEHAKE NG PR &
FEIFEsT TR R MR AR R IR B E G S
R BETIR

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERERLQE

159



Notes to Financial Statements

M F5 SR R MY 5

31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

15. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
buildings, motor vehicles and leased land. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease periods of 50 years to 70 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.
Leases of plant and buildings generally have lease terms
between 2 and 12 years, while motor vehicles generally have
lease terms of 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets

and the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 January 2019
Additions
Depreciation charge

As at 31 December 2019
and 1 January 2020

Additions

Decrease

Depreciation charge
Disposal of a subsidiary

As at 31 December 2020
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R_E—-NE—HB—H

//J\E
ERx<

RIE—hE
+-B=+—8&
T FF—HF—H

hE

b

MERX

HE—RKIBAF

R=B=BF+=A
=+-8

15. fHE
SEBREBEBA
AEERLSERERIEFT SERESL
HET TS S  BIRATEE — RIS

Nz WEAE LM HEER50FEE70
E ﬁ@ﬁ%%i%ﬁgm%%ﬁhTaﬁ

REBEMEFHHABEE

u?kmzﬁrﬁwﬁmm%L%%umh
SoAEEATEAERMINAL
EERAOHEESE-

—%

(@ EHESE
REBFAFERHEEENEREENR
BHEIUT

Leasehold Plant and Motor
land buildings vehicles Total
HELTH BEKRETF RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®BTRT AR®TRT ARETR®
64,695 1,776 1,448 67,919
1,541 10,261 - 11,802
(1,863) (1,560) (189) (3,612)
64,373 10,477 1,259 76,109
1,056 1,557 - 2,613
(1,548) - - (1,548)
1,877) 2,011) (189) 4,077)
(1,013) - - (1,013)
60,991 10,023 1,070 72,084
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15. LEASES (continued) 15. *E.E (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEAEREA @
(b)  Lease liabilities b)) HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the
movements during the year are as follows:

K—B—HRRETEE

Carrying amount at 1 January

New leases WEE

Accretion of interest recognised FRERRA EIENE
during the year

Payments (NE

R+ZB=+—HBNREZHE

Carrying amount at 31 December

Analysed into: DA -
Current portion mENER
Non-current portion FERENEL 7

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 37 to the financial statements.

FABEAR GtASBIRITTREM
BEET) NREERESNT !

2020 2019
—ECEE —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
11,712 3,341
1,557 10,261
482 208
(2,562) (2,098)
11,189 11,712
(1,985) (2,043)
(9,204) (9,669)

HEaBEZIHEI MR E BRI
37 EE o
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

15. HE ®w

TEBEAEBEA®
(c) MRIBmPERNEESHEBERIENT :

2020 2019

—ECEF —ENEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBET T

Interest on lease liabilities HESEFR 482 208

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {#HEEETERZ 4,077 3,612
Expense relating to short-term leases B HATE E B RIRYRISZ

(included in administrative expenses) GtATTERR) 604 737

Total amount recognised in profit or loss A 1Em P HERINAEEEE 5,163 4,557

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note
32(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting
of three commercial properties in Shanghai and Jiaxing under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group
during the year was RMB606,000 (2019: RMB611,000).

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments

receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years

2020 Annual Report —Z T FFH

—FEUEEMEUR

() FHERSRHEIERIFEREME
32(0)iKEE ©

FEBEALHBEA
AEFRBRESHELHEERLREY
(fisE14) (BELEREZEN=ZEEBY
¥) cEHREMBRR—RITRERL Z
REE M EAREERNT R EHEEHE
SEHBEE AEBERABRINES WA
A AR¥606,0007c (ZE—NFE: AR
611,0007T) ©

‘B EE+-A=+—8 FKER
85U 5 5T 32 B9 AT NS BT E R RO
#BRIB0SK 7 SRR B FEURORA T

2020 2019
SEIEE CEFNE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR  AR®TR
422 606

= 62

422 668




16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2020

At 1 January 2020,
net of accumulated amortisation

Amortisation provided during the year

At 31 December 2020,
net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 December 2020:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

31 December 2019

At 1 January 2019, net of
accumulated amortisation

Disposal of a subsidiary
Amortisation provided
during the year

At 31 December 2019,
net of accumulated amortisation

At 31 December 2019:

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net carrying amount

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

16. HhWEMEE

—BZEF+°A=+—H

Certified
emission rights
SREE HE A
RMB’000
AR#FT
N_ZE"ZF—H—H>
PR E kA 4,703
FERNE RS (545)
R_F_BE+A=+—8"
PR R sHEkH 4,158
N_E_EF+_F=+—§:
D% 9,852
Rty (5,694)
IREFERR 4,158
=NEETr =B ==&
Certified
Patents emission
and licences rights Total
=l
I SRR EERUE 4ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARBETT ARKTT
RZZ2—hFE—HF—8"
m&%&%% 2,000 5,248 7,248
HE—XRHBLE (2,000) - (2,000)
PO 1
- (545) (545)
R_E—hE
+—B=+—8"
MR R st#H = 4,703 4,703
m:v —NE+-B=+—
ﬁEZK . - 9,852 9,852
Rt fa - (5,149) (5,149)
BREF AR _ 4,703

4,703
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17. DEFERRED TAX

TEREFAT S —H,

Notes to Financial Statements

A5 ¥R R I 5E

31 December 2020

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the
Group during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:

At 1 January 2019

Disposal of a subsidiary

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year
(note 10)

At 31 December 2020

RZE—nE—B—H
HE—ZHBAT
ERFAAHBER/
(BEHEERNR 1
BERE
(Hat10)

RIZ-h&+ZB=1+—8H
RZEZZ5-B—H

ERFAGHBER/
(BEHEERNR 1
EEHE
(Hizt10)

RZIEZS5+-A=1+-H

2020 Annual Report —ZE - E&F £33}

17. EEIRIA
FEBEERESERERRERNNES)
mE
BIERBERE :

Depreciation  Loss available  Fair value
in excess for offsetting loss on
Allowance Provision Elimination of  of related against future ~ derivative  Deductible
for doubtful for  unrealised depreciation taxable financial donation
Accrual debts  inventories profits allowance profits  instruments expense Total
RESY  BLNEH  fEER
##  BRNE BRERR IRNAR Gk
FRER REREFE FREE AZREN BENEE ENZER  BEFR  BREX At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT AREBTr ARETR AREBTr ARETR ARETr ARETR ARBTr ARETR
1,841 392 806 1,827 4,699 - 860 - 10,425
- - - - (434) = = = (434)
(33) (353) 4313 (162) 1,322 - (860) - 4,227
1,808 39 5119 1,665 5,587 - - - 14,218
(491) 53 (1,487) (503) (1,277) 28,701 - 286 25,282
1,317 92 3,632 1,162 4310 28,701 = 286 39,500




17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities:

At 1 January 2019 RZE-—h&—F—H
Deferred tax charged to the FEREEFHBERRIE
consolidated statement of BRI IR
profit or loss during the year (Hizt10)
(note 10)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-hE&E
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—HK

“E_T4—H-—H

Deferred tax charged/ (credited) o R E&HERRINR

the consolidated statement of GIARHERES B
profit or loss during the year EIERA
(note 10) (Hiat10)
At 31 December 2020 RIZZEE
+=B=+-8

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to

earnings generated after 31 December 2007.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

17. EERIE @
IRERIBEEE ©

Withholding
tax on Fair value Depreciation
undistributed gains on allowance
profits of the derivative Unrealised in excess
Mainland China financial exchange gain of related
subsidiaries instruments in Italy depreciation Total
FREIARE
HEAR &R BAF TERE
KRR IANAR RER BHAR
iohibingi BERT ERRE TENEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
11,431 . - 7,706 19,137
4,824 50 56 4,623 9,553
16,255 50 56 12,329 28,690

RIF(EREFFRIZE) > AT EARERA AL
YRS EREEERIINEREETIKBIR
BAMEI0%NTENMR -ZHEEB _FTTN
F-A—BAERERCALBRANR_ZTLF
+TR=+t—HREENEF
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

17. EERIE @
IRERIEEE . @

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and RIEEIN A ETRIENBEERER
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of EREHBBERRIERANEHE - BIEHB2
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred ]2 AEEBREIER ISR D
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: s s

Deferred tax of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 AERR _E_EER_E—NE+_A

relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets arising from:

— Allowance for doubtful debts

— Provision for inventories

— Elimination of unrealised profits

— Accrual

— Loss available for offsetting against
future taxable profit

— Deductible donation expense

— Depreciation in excess of related
depreciation allowance

2020 Annual Report —Z T FFH

=+—H® ;ﬁkﬂilﬁéﬁ—l‘?u%lﬁﬁﬁﬁ :

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EZE —E—NE
+ZB=+—H +—B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥TFIT
TR IBEENRIERBEE !

—REREEHE 92 39
—FERE 3,632 5,119
—IRH R EIR A 1,162 1,665
—TRIRER 1,317 1,808
—ALUKHE BB ERR AT

518 28,701 -
—Al{RIE R 286 -
—ITEBHEMITEREDN

FXE 4,310 5,587

39,500 14,218




Notes to Financial Statements

RA 5 ER R MY 5
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17. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 17. IEERIE @
Deferred tax liabilities: (continued) IRERIBEE © @)

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
ZEIEE —ENEF
+ZA=+—H +TZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBT T
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: T EEEENRIERIBEEE:
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — FREE A Bt 8 A B K /K
of Mainland China subsidiaries i MBI TR AR (13,729) (16,255)
— Depreciation allowance in excess of —TEREBLARTEN
related depreciation Eot | (21,650) (12,329)
— Fair value gains on derivative financial —fT4 &M TENARNEE
instruments (Ch = (50)
— Unrealised exchange gain in Italy —EANKREBRERST (714) (56)
(36,093) (28,690)
Deferred tax, net R IR T B 3,407 (14,472)
Reflected in the consolidated statement of K2 & B4 #5 iR 2= P9 s B
financial position:
— Deferred tax assets —IRIEFRIEE B 23,277 5,680
— Deferred tax liabilities —IRERMRIAR R (19,870) (20,152)
The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of AEERFEANMELENRNBEBESAR
RMB112,664,000 (2019: Nil) that will expire in five years for #112,664,0007C (ZZ2— N5 #) &R H
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have FRE BRI R R BRI & F] - EBLEZ
been recognised in respect of these losses as it is considered LRHEREDIBIEMSINEE  TH RN
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the HRAEFEEAEA LHERRHNER
above items can be utilised. Um0
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

17.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB1,029,000 (2019: Nil) that will expire in five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits and has tax losses arising
in Ethiopia of RMB3,612,000 (2019: Nil) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the above items can be utilised.

As at 31 December 2020, other than the amount recognised
in the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax has not
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such unremitted earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB445,249,000 at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB444,106,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

2020 Annual Report —Z T FFH

17. EERIE @

IRIERIEEME - @
AEBRAPEAMEENREBES AR
#1,029,0007TC (ZZ—NLF  #8) * IR A F

P B HB LU 88 R 2R B SR R i A1) e A IR A
&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%k%%&mzmwﬂ_
T—NF &\ ERBENRIEHEES
R RABNRRERER & o WM ZE
BEIEMREIEFESIREE YRR HERS
RATFIE R B L4t 18 B IR S P FE SR AR i
Ho

RZEZEF+_F=+—H KkattH
IR AR EEEIN > REE T B E
B KFER I B AR BHMTENR
B9 >k B W 28 A1) BT FE S B9 B0 AR FE SR AR E AR
BHoEERBA ZEWBRAANATBRR
RAKEIS ﬁﬁ&#%[&ﬁﬂ R IE
“EFE+"B=+—H AR EAREEK
B A BRI B A BA T L EE B UL R SRR AE
RESENEREEBHEBEaEOAA
R 1£445,249,00070 (ZZ2—hF : AR
444,106,0007T) ©

A AT R B IR IR B I KPS
MERR-



18. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments for acquisition of
a building and a land use right
Others

19. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

Notes to Financial Statements

18.

WS T R L e R 1ERY
FATRIE
HAth

R
AR m
Rplan

As at 31 December 2020, inventories with a carrying amount
of RMB40,000,000 (2019: RMB40,000,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 26(i).

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

HhIEREEE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EEHE —E—hEF
+-—H=+—H +—HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
- 48,000
407 407
407 48,407

=78

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEE “E—hEF
+=BA=+—H +-_HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETF T
346,190 443,335
54,503 59,313
393,132 292,944
793,825 795,592

MN_E_EF+_B=+—H RE£EE
A ANE#40,000,0007t (ZE—HE : AR
#40,000,0007T) NEEEFEF  FAK
EEERBITERIER WM E26()FT
EAS
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEUN & 5 BR =X
Notes receivable ENERE
Impairment BE

Customers are normally granted credit terms ranging from
30 days to 150 days depending on the creditworthiness of
the individual customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The Group’s notes receivable were all aged within six months
and were neither past due nor impaired.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within T month —@B LA
1 to 2 months —ZEMEA
2 to 3 months ME={ER
Over 3 months BE =1 A

2020 Annual Report —Z T FFH

20. FEUWLE BRI BURE

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
ZRIEF —ENF
TA=S+—H ]
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARET T
232,847 263,102
145,399 85,078
(2,410) (2,367)

375,836 345,813

ER—RERTEEHIOREIS0KR RYF
BREFNEEME AEBDRFGFER
MEIERI R W EIREERIE TRAEEE
HBUREERBAERE SHREEE
EHERBRER - B E 5 R A5
Bo

FEBENBREERREHOSNEARR I
BARTERE-

REESHR ZAEBNEWE 5 RIRE
EHS BT HRBEEHEIRE DT

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—EEH —E—hEF
+—-—B=+—H +—HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETFTT
127,831 121,065

40,951 45,908

25,872 46,354

35,783 47,408

230,437 260,735




Notes to Financial Statements

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year TR
Impairment losses, net (note 7)
Amount written off as uncollectible

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

RERSIRFER (Wat7)
UL A% A BT U (o] B 2 B8

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

0. BEWEGIRFEREKERE @

B ZIRBAEBREEFEESHUWT :

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
“EIEE —E-NE
t=-A=+—A +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
2,367 725

59 2,014

(16) (372)

2,410 2,367

RERSARARARBERETRED
o Ut ERREEER - BERIBERRE
MERRUBERIANZERR O BET
oHE (BPIEALE B P 18R K sT Ak 5 5
BREAMEERBRTEANRESLE) Ma
HIB B #GEHE - LSt B R RBIR NS R
ERRERNBSARAUSNERBTS
B BRR R AR REEFRGERANGE
REJGER - —RM = HEKE 5 RRE
HBB—F B FLUNE  BRRAITIIF
MR o
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. BB ZEIRFKRERERE @
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TREARBERSIGHASERREWE
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: SERAREER R THNER :
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZZEH+="HA=+—H
Past due
AR
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
Dt —F B
BNEHA —{@EA =@AR =@AR st
Expected credit loss rate TEEAE EEExX 0.00% 0.26% 2.30% 11.32% 1.04%
Gross carrying amount AREREE
(RMB’000) ANREFT) 195,043 4,552 15,149 18,103 232,847
Expected credit losses TRHAE & 18
(RMB’000) ANR¥TT) = 12 348 2,050 2,410
As at 31 December 2019 N ZE—AF+ZHA=1+—H
Past due
B HA
Less than 1to3 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
DR =z =]
BPEA —1{&A =@A =X (= 45t
Expected credit loss rate TRHAE ERIEX 0.00% 0.88% 3.26% 9.29% 0.90%
Gross carrying amount MRIREE
(RMB’000) (ANR®BFT) 213,814 9,675 23,202 16,411 263,102
Expected credit losses TAHE E/1E
(RMB’000) (ANR®BFT) - 85 757 1,525 2,367
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20.

Notes to Financial Statements

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are not derecognised in their
entirety

As at 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed
Notes”) with a carrying amount of RMB18,474,000 (31
December 2019: RMB29,323,000) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to these Endorsed Notes, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Notes and the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not
retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including
sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other third
parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables
settled by the Endorsed Notes to which the suppliers have
recourse was RMB18,474,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: RMB29,323,000).

20.

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

FEW B 5 BRI B FENZE 1 @)
i S EAR ISR RN E 1

RIE_EFE+_B=+—H &~EEMH
HETHERSZE THTRNETER
HNEWERE (REEEEK)) ' RESEA
AR 118,474,000t (ZE—hLE+_AH
=+—H: AR#%829,323,0007T) * UL HIE
NZEREENRENERERR (HE)) o
RABEEZRA AEBNFRBEARR
KE GEEHZESCHEZHRNEYN
RRE BAREEE A SRS E I A8
EASENES RIS BIREMESEE
REER 2EBRITEFRETAEALY
SERNEF GEREAEME=SE
EEEGERCSEZ R UHEERAR
BRENKCHEZSHEENENEZRR
M- _ETE+ A=+—HMERMEAREE
2 NR#18,474,0000 (—E—HE+_F
=+—H : AE#29,323,0007T) °
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20.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are derecognised in their entirety
As at 31 December 2020, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised
Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB69,290,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB54,755,000). The Derecognised Notes had a maturity
of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC,
the holders of the Endorsed Notes have a right of recourse
against the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing
Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
relating to the Derecognised Notes. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Notes and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Notes are not significant.

The Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes in 2020 (2019: Nil).
No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
Endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.
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20.

FEUWE SRR ENER @
2HRIEERNERER
A CETEE+_HA=1+—H ' AEAH
HETHERSEE THTEANETER
MEWESE (TR IERBZEHE]) > IREm4EEE
A ANR169,290,0007Tt (ZTE—NF+=
B=+—H : AR#54,755,0007T) > MU&5
BENZEREDNENE SRR &I
RERBRESAREST—ZENEB R E
HoREBEFEZER L BHEZEENRER
AB#ERFPENIRITENRFRAERIRE Y
BER (FEZ2H)) - ARAEERA AE
EEESZ AR IIEIEZERNEAIS A
% K [O] % o AL > AEE B4R IEFERR AR IERE
RERMEEENEZEREANESBRE S
HoAEEBFES AR ERIZERED
ZERIIBBZENAGERRERENR
SEKABESENERREEIE  AAF
EERA AEERFES AR IERIRE
HAREBELAEK-

RoB-BE AEEL KRB
D QRSB ASHNSE CE—A
) o REMBmPNEN N BHERE
B2 ENEAERREE - SENRER
TIIYE o



21.

Notes to Financial Statements

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Value added tax recoverable Al ENEER
Prepayments FAT
Deposits and other receivables BE M H MBI

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximates to their fair value due to their short-
term maturity.

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

AR RS R H At FEULRRIR

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—_E_EHE —E—hF
+=B=+—H +=—B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
19,772 47,899

32,470 25,398

33,705 18,941

85,947 92,238

FHEGRASEER A B REBREENR
Hio

SPALMERNEMEERTRTEER
LREBANERRBEER - R-_T-F
FR-IBE-NE+ZA=+—H F6EH
BEFEMTEM-

M ERA R RN R R HthE
WRIERERE R E A RDEBEES
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31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Assets: BE
Foreign currency forward SNEREAEAY
contracts — current —BNEA

(i) The currency forward contracts are not designated as cash flows,
fair value or net investment hedges. No change in the fair value
of non-hedging currency forward contracts was charged to the
statement of profit or loss during the year (2019: RMB198,000).
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22.

gn—

177

Note
HizE

(1)

$EMTA
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ZEIEF “E-hEF
+-—H=+—H +—HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
- 198

ZEERHENRIEEABERE A0
BESFRER o MEIES P E =
EHNAABEZSHHAEREBER (T
T—HE . AR198,0007T) ©
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 23. IRE&KRBFEEBEYURBIEIFER

DEPOSITS
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
+ZA=+—HA +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBT T
Cash and bank balances & MIRTTAE R 199,650 290,966
199,650 290,966
Less: Pledged deposits for letters of credit & : EFLE AR IEIFNTER (30,167) (75,903)
Pledged deposits for bank loans ERIRTTERIRIRINER (2,722) (70,265)
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEBY 166,761 144,798
Denominated in RMB UAR#EHE 87,817 70,333
Denominated in HK$ LUBTTEHE 3,149 1,812
Denominated in EUR L ERITstE 10,986 29,734
Denominated in US$ LIETTstE 94,900 117,892
Denominated in other currencies MHEME ¥ EHE 2,798 71,195
Cash and bank balances IBE KIRIT4EER 199,650 290,966
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, ARBATTEHRZMAEHMER - AT 1B
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control BB KRR (IR E IR R G ) K (ETE ~ &
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and ERMEESERTE)  AEREEEBER
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is ETHIEXZBNRTRARBRBAH
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks e -
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITEREREBESHRTERINEGEZ
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits IR KGR RITHEREBIRIATERE
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of BHARENELBEERFZRIT

default.
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24.

25.

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and notes payables as at 31
December 2020, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

24, ERNEZRFKEMERE
ATECBE+ B +—0 BIRE
HA B 4B FE 1 B 53 BR R FE A E AR AR e

DU
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEE “E—NF
+=BA=+—H +-_HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETF T
Due within 1 month or on demand —{8 B W EIEAs I 2K EE 56,991 61,839
Due after 1 month but within 3 months ~ —18 8 BB =188 R ZIEA 141,872 268,978
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =188 #8758 B R ZI &R = 28,000
198,863 358,817

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of trade and notes payables at the end of
each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to

their short term maturity.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Contract liabilities X =k
Payroll payables ENE
Accruals RIREM
Other payables HAth & RIE

2020 Annual Report —ZE - EFFif

PR ABEERRTS R -REREH
xR BB BN B 5 RRRE
NRBEFRETREE QN ABERSE

25. HttfERIAKRTRIRE R

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EEHF —E—NEF
+=A=+—H +=B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARET T

(i) 19,752 14,935
20,969 27,489

1,759 4,046

117,021 84,987
159,501 131,457
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

(i) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Short-term advances received WERE B AT R =
from customers

1€ O

Sale of goods EmifE

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.
The carrying amount of other payables and accruals at the end
of each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to
their short term maturity.

25.

HthB A RRIERFRIRER @

i) BHEeREEFBENT:

31 December
2020
ZEIEE
+=—HB=+—H
RMB’000
ARETT

19,752

31 December
2019
—ENF
+ZA=+—H
RMB’000
AREFT

14,935

FHEGRAERERRTGE -REREH
Ko BHIREHARN R A RIER TR
REANKRESEEARNAEBERSE
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS

Current

Secured bank loans
Unsecured bank loans
Other loans - unsecured

Lease liabilities (note 15)

Non-current

Secured bank loans

Other loans - unsecured

Lease liabilities (note 15)
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bl
BRMETER

BEMETER

BE&R Wt15)

JREDR

BHRFRITER

HitEm-EE

HE&RE Wz15)

26. stERITREMBES

31 December 2020
ZEC2EE
tZRA=+-H
Effective
interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000
BEH=
(%) I8 AR%TR

2.50-4.78 2021 401,682
1.57-5.00 2021 488,832
3.73 2021 69,900
445 2021 1,985
962,399

491 2024 44,000
445  2022-2031 9,204
53,204

1uts 3

31 December 2019

Effective
interest rate
(%)
BIRAI=
(%)

2.60-4.79

2.01-5.22

441

4.28

491

441

—2—nE

TZA=+-H

Maturity

El)

2020

2020

2020

2021

2024

2021-2031

RMB'000

ARETT

304,284

517,155

2,043

823,482

25,200

44,000

9,669

78,869

902,351
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 26. ;tERITREMEE @

BORROWINGS (continued)

Analysed into:

Bank loans repayable:
Within one year
In the second year

Other borrowings repayable:
Within one year
In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive

Over five years

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ZEIERF —E—NEF
+=B=+—H F=E=4=E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
DT
[EEZERITER
—FRN 890,514 821,439
B4 = 25,200
890,514 846,639
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EZFE “E—hEF
+=ZB=+—8 F=E=—E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETF T
FEEZEEAMERR
—FRN 71,885 2,043
== 1,680 1,404
E=FERE
(BIEEEMS) 46,675 46,691
AEME 4,849 5,574
125,089 55,712
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26.

2020 Annual Report —E_ =&

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB401,682,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, and inventories with carrying amounts of
RMB252,403,000 (2019: RMB122,816,000), RMB56,029,000
(2019: RMB39,397,000) and RMB40,000,000 (2019:
RMB40,000,000), respectively.

(i)  Asat31 December 2019, the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB25,200,000 were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group with carrying amounts of
RMB71,393,000 and RMB14,783,000, respectively.

The carrying amount of the current interest-bearing bank loans
of the Group approximates to their fair value due to their short-
term maturity.

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing bank
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 was assessed to
be insignificant. Management has assessed that the carrying
amount of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans of
the Group approximates to their fair value because the fixed
interest rate is close to currently available rate.

R

26.

stRIRITREMEE @
Wizt :

(i) RN_E_ZB2E+_B=+—H KAl
A AR®E401,682,0007T R BN HA 5+
BRRTEEURASESIIABARKE
252,403,000 (ZE—hF : AR
122,816,0007t) ~ AEK#56,029,0007T (=
T—NE : AE#39,397,0007T) AR
#40,000,0007TC (ZB—HF : ARK
40,000,0007T) BI& FTH12 ~ B R & HE
TR E TR RIE R EEIRIR

(i) RIE—hF+"HBA=+—H RkE+%E
%A AR #25,200,0007cHIEENEA 5T S 5R1T
BEMREEED A ARTE71,393,000
TR ARK14,783,000cHIAREREE T
¥ B KR B R Lt E A TRIBEIR
o

MR EIE A EEEVE 5t B IRTT
EMMREZEEAEAABERS

JEENAAEt BIRTEENAAEERBAR
BEELUGR - EERRRRERFHRNT
AENRTHNXFTRABHARRESRES
BN ZF+_A=+—H ' =&H
AEHBIRITEENTBORBRBTE
RILAER - REEEMTE FEEMIF
Bt BIRTERNKREZREERARE
BRE RASEEMRZEZERAF

> o



27. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:

At the beginning and the end
of the year
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27. B&7s

ERE

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

“ECEE “ENE
+=A=+-H +=A=+-8
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
KRir&E Eot ] aREE] EEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
F1R0.01BTEER 3,000,000,000 30,000 3,000,000,000 30,000
ERTRERE :
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
ZE°ZF+ZRB=t—-H “E-NF+ZRA=1+-H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RHHE &% RO#E g
HK$000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
equivalent equivalent
TET ARETR TET AREBTR
% =&
REMRER
629,678,000 6,297 6,329 629,678,000 6,297 6,329

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAERATE
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28. TREASURY SHARES

31 December 2020

28.

EEFRR

31 December 2019

ZEZE%+ZB=1+-H “E-NE+ZRA=1—H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
UL E! &8 BB &8

HK$/000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
equivalent equivalent
TErT ARETRm TErx ARETH
] %E
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&= (&= (K=17) (K=17)
At the beginning of year RER] 18,390,000 21,006 18,493 19,400,000 22,160 19,508
Vested shares transferred BEENHERM (5,159,250) (6,374) (5,188)  (1,010,000) (1,154) (1,015)
At the end of year REX 13,230,750 14,632 13,305 18,390,000 21,006 18,493

On 26 August 2016, the Company adopted a share award
plan, which is not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules (the “Share Award Plan”). The board of
directors may, at their discretion, grants shares of the Company
to eligible participants. The Company has appointed a trustee
for administration of the Share Award Plan (the “Trustee”). The
principal activity of the Trustee is administrating and holding
the Company’s shares for the Share Award Plan for the benefit
of the Company’s award holders. The Company’s shares will
be purchased by the Trustee in the market with cash paid by
the Company and held in the trust for relevant award holders
until such shares are vested in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Award Plan. Upon vesting, the Trustee shall either
transfer the vested awarded shares at no cost to such award
holders or sell the vested awarded shares at the then prevailing
market price by way of market order and remit the net proceeds
to the award holders in accordance with the direction given by
such award holders. The Trustee purchased 19,400,000 shares
of the Company at a total consideration of approximately
RMB19,508,000 and 19,370,000 shares were granted to award
holders. During the year ended 31 December 2020, 5,159,250
vested shares which amounted to RMB5,188,000 were
transferred to award holders.
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NZB—RNENAZ+H > ARG
—IER (D EZRN 5T 8 (TR AP EZEN 5T 8Y1) » %5t
AR LR E+EEBRXAHAER-E
E2NERAEER2EABEEARABRK
B oRNBIBEEZTA (ZEA) EER
PEREFE - R ANEEFTHIALRA
BB E AWA R IR DR EIE B
REFEBRABIRMG - ARBNRKRDKHEZ
FRARTHLERARABZMHNIREEA
WEFE R XA ERREESEAMTE
BEBRARMDIBERMDER T ENE ST U
HEAL - NEBR SEABRRZE
REFE AEENIE ™ B EEFBHER
BHhREESETFTZESREITE A HR ™
5 ERERRTHNMERHEER B
BB AP M A P 1S TR IE R BB B U T IR BN IR
Ao ZEEAMARRLBLYAR19,508,0007T
BE A Z~/A5119,400,0008% f% 15 > 19,370,000
BEROMDERTREFTEABE_Z"Z
E+-HA=1+—HLEEE - £EAARK
5,188,00075AY5,159,2508% B 57 8 I 1) B &
ETHREIFA A



29.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE AWARD PLAN

On 25 May 2018, the board of directors (including all
independent non-executive directors), based on the
recommendation of the remuneration committee, resolved
to grant a total of 19,370,000 awarded shares, which have
been acquired by the Trustee from the open market by using
the Company’s internal resources, to 92 employees who were
eligible persons (“Grantees”).

The 19,370,000 awarded shares to be granted to the Grantees
represented (i) nearly 3.08% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the grant date; and (ii) the value of
approximately RMB19,508,000 based on the calculation of the
share purchase records.

1,010,000 of the 19,370,000 awarded shares were granted to
37 Grantees who were employees and have served the Group
for 30 years or more, or each of employee couples who have
served the Group for 30 years or more. These awarded shares of
approximately 1 million will be vested on the first anniversary
upon the grant date.

30% of 18,360,000 of the 19,370,000 awarded shares shall
vest on the first anniversary upon the grant date and the
other 30% and 40% shares shall vest on the second and third
anniversaries upon the grant date, respectively.

Moreover, whether these 18,360,000 awarded shares shall be
vested depends on two requirements: the Group’s net profit
target and personnel annual performance evaluation. As the net
profit target, the Group’s audited net profit is to reach RMB100
million in 2019, RMB150 million in 2020, and RMB200
million in 2021. If the Group misses the target in year one,
the 30% shares awarded cannot vest only if the Group meets
the target in the next year. If the Group continuously misses
the target in year two, the shares of year one will no longer
be vested. As for the personnel evaluation, the Grantees shall
receive 100% awarded shares for that year if the evaluation
result is “Pass” and receive 75% or 50% awarded shares for
“Need Improvements” or “Fail”.

29.
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A& 1 B Bh 5t 21
ATE-NERA_+HH EEE (BF
E2RBUHNTES) REFHNEES
HEER FRAANEBEERALZEE
(MEF2 A ) B H & $£19,370,0002 52 Eh %
7 ZERBRMBESTAERAETAT 2
NI E RN AR5 _EUREE o

M)A A H 2% %19,370,0000% 22 E) i
BHEEROAATNRIEE B BEETR
ZR33.08%; K (i)EEA AR #19,508,0007T
(RIERDEE LT H) ©

19,370,000 2B A% 15 A B91,010,0008% 1%
FI72ABRAN (REARELEBRBAE
E30FHU L HEEERBAEEI0F
FU LM BRFEREZEE) -ZEN—]F
BzREBROBRIZHEBERE—BFH
}%o

19,370,0008% 22 Ep i 15 F 918,360,000/ 5%
RHHPRE—BERE3I0% > BIN0%MK
40% B ABINIRHBBREZBERSE
—BEFBC

tE 9N » 5%25518,360,000 R NG 19 B 5 &7
BEOARMEBERTE | AEBNMANEEZEK
ANEFEEX£ETE -MANBEMS > &
EEKBZMAAIN —_E—NEEZI AR
100,000,000 - R _ZFZF AR
150,000,000TC &R — 8B~ —FZ3 AR
200,000,0007T ° H AR E BN HE — F R EE
BHiZ, BlEERERNE —FEED BIZEH
75 F LU B30%BI S EIIR (D o A E BN 5
TEFEREIBRE ME—FHIRMGE
TBEEB -mASTGHMS  MABEAZT
hEER% EE) 0 B ERFZFEE100%H
SRS > MfH 2 N5 B R TR e A&
E1875%50%BI BN 14 o

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAERATE

185



186

Notes to Financial Statements

M F5 SR R MY 5

31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

29.

30.

SHARE AWARD PLAN (continued)

On 25 May 2018, the Company communicated the awarding
of shares with its employees by the Notice of Share Award
Plan. By the Notice of Share Award Plan, the Company and
the employees shared a full understanding of the terms and
conditions of the arrangement. 25 May 2018 was the Grant
Date.

The fair value of awarded shares was HK$0.97 per share, which
was the market price of the shares on 25 May 2018.

The Company assumed that the employees’ resignation rate
would be 1.23% and the employees’ evaluation result would
be 95% of “Pass” and 5% of “Need improvements”. However,
the possibility of achieving the net profit target would be 0%.

At the end of the reporting period, 6,169,000 awarded shares
were vested to the Grantees and the rest of awarded shares will
not be vested in the future considering profit target evaluation.
The share award expense of RMB4,295,000 was reversed
under the Share Award Plan in 2020 while the expense of
RMB5,631,000 was accrued under the Share Award Plan in
2019.

RESERVES

The changes in the reserves of the Group during the year have
been disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
shareholders’ total capital contributions to Hong Kong
Kingdom over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange therefor as at the date of
a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Group to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 November 2006.
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30.

B 1R BB 51 21 )
RN_E—N\NELR_+LHH AATESE
IR IREN T 2B A R H BB B ERD IR
HEF o BBRMDIERFEEN AR B KIE
BERDBHRZEHNERREE —F—/\
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RRIRMNANEERSR0.9787T IR
PRZE-\FLR-+HANHE-

FABRREERBERSD1.23% MEST
EAER795% @B > 5% BEUE - A
M > SEAAER] B 1RAY AT SEME 230% ©

RIREHAR > K Z Binf BIEFEBR
6,169,000 BN MD EHF BN AR A >
MERRERORBREFIERB R
T -EHE> AREHA4,295,00070H &5 2= ED
X ERKRRGEREEE MR
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Notes to Financial Statements

RESERVES (continued)

PRC statutory reserve

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to transfer at
least 10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations, to the general reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The general reserve fund can be used to make good losses
and convert into share capital by the issue of new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing equity holdings.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries.

Share award reserve

Details of the Company’s share award plan and the shares
awarded under the plan are included in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in the share
premium account are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

31.
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#Ew

REEE HE

—RIEEE
FEARRENHRE R B BB TR EE 5
HREBENBRKRBENNRD10%E —%RE
B HERBEREIEZSEMER
B950%75 1E o R B L B 2R IR BT AR
R T

—fRFHT I RFREEERUZRRE
BERRLEAREZBITHRON S NEBIRS
B o

ER A
ERRESERERINNBADMBERE
FREEMFPIAERZ%R

B 17 B2 B fet
AABBIRN R SR RRF AR B
BYBR D BIREIS » B B ¥R AR B 529

B8
ROGSERNEASIAESHE AT EE
B REMSBHSAR A MEEEZD K
REBHZ ARRENNAEETBRE
TEEIRES ARMEERTHNES
AT ARTB KRR
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31. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 31. HE—RKMEQE
2020
ZEISE
RMB’000
ARBTT
(Audited)
(&%)
Net assets disposed of: HENFEE !
Property, plant and equipment Y E NN E 14,277
Other intangible assets Hithmr & & 1,013
Cash and bank balances & RIRITAEER 229
Prepayments and other receivables TR R EL AR IR IR 1,588
Inventories =B 21,062
Trade payables FEFT B ZERN (1,892)
Accruals and other payables TEIR B R H ML RIE (32,400)
3,877
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWNBABNEm 11,123
15,000
Satisfied by: AN YSE
Cash RBE 15,000
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HE—XNBABMNRE RIREFEBYR
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: EORREDAMTIT -
2020
—EIEHE
RMB’000
ARBTT
(Audited)
(&%)
Cash consideration RENE =
Cash and bank balances disposed of HENIRE RIBTTA R (229)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HE—XRNBEBABNRE K
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary REEBYRL #EE (229)
& Cash consideration of RMB15,000,000 was received * BB E 15,000,000t HER =
subsequently in March 2021. Z—F=FUYHERe
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 32. §HIR&RERM:E

CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transactions @ FEIFHRERS
There were no major non-cash transactions during the REMVBRFELETZIFRER
current financial year. 5 °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b)) MEITBEEZERED
activities
2020 k-t 5=
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
RITRHEMER HE&E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AREETTT
At 31 December 2019 IR -NFEFZR=1+—H 890,639 11,712
Changes from financing cash flows FIEIRETME 2 EH) 113,776 (2,081)
New leases wmiEE = 1,557
Interest expense MEMxZ - 482
Interest paid classified as DEBKRERTREN
operating cash flows BAFER - (482)
At 31 December 2020 AR CERFEF_RB=+—H 1,004,415 11,188
2019 —E-NEF
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
RITRHEHMER HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREETTT
At 31 December 2018 IR -N\FF+ZR=+—H 559,384 -
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 PRan (BIPR R F R S ZE Al )
EAE A2 - 3,341
At 1 January 2019 (restated) A _E-NEFE—A—HKE
51)) 559,384 3,341
Changes from financing cash flows FIEIRETME 2 EH) 331,255 (1,890)
New leases wiEE = 10,261
Interest expense MEMX - 208
Interest paid classified as DEAKERSRENSHF]
operating cash flows &l - (208)
At 31 December 2019 R ZE-NFF+RB=+—H 890,639 11,712
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

REEBA
G REE N

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

33. COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

Contracted for property,
plant and equipment
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32. EHEERERME @

(0 FHERTARLBE

SAARESRERNEERSRNEE

FEUNH ¢

2020 2019

—EEHE —E—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREETF T
945 945

2,081 1,890

3,026 2,835

33. KIE

REBEHR > AEBBEARFEDT ¢

31 December
2020
—EEHF
+=B=+—H
RMB’000
ARBETT

MY BB RREETN

100,889

31 December
2019

= s
+ZA=+—H
RMB’000
ARETIT

41,370
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ Transactions with companies controlled by one of
the Company’s directors

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group leased offices and manufacturing facilities
located in Mainland China from Zhejiang Kingdom
Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom Creative”) and
incurred operating lease charges of RMB476,000
(2019: RMB500,000). Mr. Ren Weiming
has a controlling equity interest in Kingdom
Creative. Rental and other terms for these lease
arrangements were negotiated between the parties
on arm’s length basis with reference to the then
prevailing market rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan
Solar Co., Ltd. with an amount of RMB2,166,000
(2019: RMB2,228,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in this company. The
price of electricity was made with a discount rate
of approximately 3.5% to the market prices.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group purchased chemicals, additives and tools
from Zhejiang Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk Co., Ltd. with an
amount of RMB8,367,000 (2019: RMB2,595,000).
Mr. Ren Weiming has a controlling equity interest
in this company. The raw material purchase was
made according to published prices and conditions
offered by the supplier to its major customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group sold finished goods to Zhejiang
Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk Co., Ltd. with an amount
of RMB75,000 (2019: RMB613,000). Mr. Ren
Weiming has a controlling equity interest in this
company. The sales of finished goods were made
according to published prices and conditions
offered to the Group’s major customers.
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34. FAERR

)

@ HHRFAT-HEFEFHNAF
ETHRZ

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RBEE_ZE_ZTE+_A
=t+—HIEEE  AEEBT
TeZRIERNDBREAR (&
Zalx)) BREZEMURFRH
AENBAERMERE  FI
EXNKESHNEERAARK
476,000t (ZZE—NF : AR
#%500,0007T) o {E#RRLE
ESEAENERER ZE
EZH 2 s & EHMERRTS
HESL2ZERMELFH
e

RBEE_ZE_ZTE+_A
=t+—HIEFE  ZEBMUA
E#2,166,00070 (ZE—H5E:
AR %2,228,0007T) EHTIE
BARBRAREE o (E4ERE
HEFEBZNBIIERRER
BER HEHTEAN3.5%°

RBEE_ZT_ZTE+_A
=t+—HIEEE  AEBBEN
ISR RmAAA R R B IR
%A ANRE¥S8,367,0007T (=
Z—h4F . AR#2,595,0007T)
] o= R N 1 - = R
HEBBSE A A B R R
o B EHREE T iR iR L e
AEFEFFRENEQME
MR AEHEE o

RBEE_ZE_ZTE+_A
=t+—HIEEE  AEBEN
ISR I mABAERATHE
A ARKE75,00050 (ZF
— N AR®613,0007T) B9
e EHEBLEREEZAT
BYIERR R R o SHE A R TH IR 3
AAEEFEREFRENER
B R AG R
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Transactions with companies controlled by one of
the Company’s directors (continued)

(@

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group sold electricity to Heilongjiang
Kangyuan Seed Industry Co., Ltd. with amounts of
RMB42,000 (2019: Nil) and sold finished goods
with amount of nil (2019: RMB73,000). Mr. Ren
Weiming has a controlling equity interest in this
company’s parent company, Kingdom Creative. The
electricity sold and sales of finished goods were
made according to published prices and conditions
offered to the Group’s major customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group leased cars from and leased an office to
Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., which incurred lease charges of RMB388,000
(2019: RMB406,000) and generated lease income
of RMB343,000 (2019: RMB420,000). Mr. Ren
Weiming has a controlling equity interest in
Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.’s parent company, Kingdom Creative. Rental
and other terms for these lease arrangements were
negotiated between the parties on arm'’s length
basis with reference to the then prevailing market
rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group and Kingdom Creative agreed to cancel a
transaction about acquiring a building and land
use right from Kingdom Creative at a consideration
of RMB50,000,000. Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in this company. The
Group prepaid RMB48,000,000 in 2019, which
was refunded back to the Group in 2020.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Short term employee benefits ZREERA!
Post-employment benefits BB ER

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(ii)
to (a)(v) above also constitute connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

34. FAEFXRZ @

(b) FEETFEZEBRASHMHEE

2020 2019
ZEIEE —ENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
4,783 4,929

106 151

4,889 5,080

EEkRETHRAEMENE—D

SRR T AR MIEES

EXMEEFE @))E @)

B3 K RRE

7R %ﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁ@?&% (E&EJ:FE

RAIF14AE) o
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. BENDENEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEHR KB M TENKRE S
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: me
2020 b et 3
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
R 8 P A5 BR
NEMEE
RMB’000
ARBF T
Trade and notes receivables FE U B 5 BR AR s FE U SR 4% 375,836
Financial assets included in deposits and STARE REMBWRIEN
other receivables SRIEE 33,705
Pledged deposits B ER 32,889
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 166,761
609,191
Financial liabilities ERafG
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
Yo 85 P A 51 BR
HER&E
RMB’000
ARBTT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRIBTREMER 1,015,603
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAEMEMRIBNE/MER 117,021
Trade and notes payables FE1T B 7 R U FE (1 R ik 198,863
1,331,487
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. HENSENERMIAEw
(continued)
2019 —E-NF
Financial assets EREE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair value

at amortised  through profit
cost or loss Total

REHKNA  RANEE

HIBREY STAB@H
TREE TREE A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRE ARMTR AR

Trade and notes receivables FEUR B Z R FEIRZE 1R 345,813 = 345,813
Financial assets included in AR E K E AT R IE R
deposits and other receivables R E 18,941 = 18,941
Derivative financial instruments $T4 &/t TH = 198 198
Pledged deposits [wEiigtike 146,168 - 146,168
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 144,798 = 144,798
655,720 198 655,918
Financial liabilities EMEE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

R IE R AT AR

NEmMEaE

RMB’000

ARBTF T

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRIBITREMER 902,351
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAEMEMRIBNE/MAER 84,987
Trade and notes payables FE1T B 5 BR U FE (14 R ik 358,817
1,346,155
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36.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

36.

EMIANAABERAABES
ER
FEESHTANEESBERALEE B
RESEEARBESBASER) 0
T <

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE%E RAEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEIBFE EFNEF IZFEITE ENHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT AR®TRT ARETT
Financial assets EREE
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged deposits, current interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, trade and notes payables, dividend payable,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments. The carrying amount of the
non-current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the
Group approximates to their fair value because the borrowings
have a floating interest rate.
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AL TERHNZETIEREHNE
HAFRER - A E BB IERDHA 5T B IR 1T e HAth
BEARZIHAXRGE > WHRE S
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36.

Notes to Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year
for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts, are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.

As at 31 December 2019, the market value of the derivative
asset position was net of a credit valuation adjustment
attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes
in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the
financial instruments recognised at fair value.

36.
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ERMITAENAABERAREBES
RERE @
UAREBTEKEBEAENTELEETE
Tt TEAABEFENBRAIER -
RN R EE REZEETE
WoMBMEHI  BHBOMERETE
NEEEHTETHEMEXBENEZH A
BoMBERMFEEERE M E BIZEES
CTESFImAEBREREREMRLUET
FEARFEMEER

THEERERNAABERENRS (&
HEBEHE L ERIN hEHEEIBT AR
EFAMR

AEFRZEHFH (FERBRAAAGEFT
RNTREE) STUTESMI R -TES
MTER (BREEHEESN) HDEHRALEER
EEREHEAEMMGERMNEE (A
REHE) ZFHREMAT ZEART
SHRRBaAE GENFHINEERE
SNEE BN HA R HABE R EA R K h R - B AR
BeNRETREEAREEER-

RZE—NE+ZB=+—H0 EmER
BNTEEERREABRIRITETAS
FHENRBEGENEETERAE -HF
FEERBHNEEFHBAABERINE
MTETEEARTE.
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. TRHTENAARBERAREBES

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) ARZRAE G

Fair value hierarchy RRBEZRER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRETAEEESMIAENAAEBENE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: ZIRIRE

Assets measured at fair value: RAARBEFENEE !

Fair value measurement using

RAUTHBETNAABEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

31 December markets inputs inputs
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
“E-AE REEDSE EXJERR EXFAERE
+ZF8 KRB BWAE BWAE
=+—H 5B £ F=E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTn ARETT ARETR

Financial assets at fair value through BAREESA

profit or loss - foreign exchange BHNERMEE

forward contracts —IMERIAEAT 198 = 198 =
During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no RB&EE_E_FEF+_F=+—HLHF
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, ErAaBEfEEE—RBAE_EZHE
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value BimER NEEAS=EIEE=EEH
measurements (2019: Nil). (CEBE—NEFE H| o
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans, trade and
notes payables, dividend payable and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various financial assets such
as trade and notes receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
that arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations
and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.
The Group's accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

37.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax for the year (through
the impact on the floating rate borrowings). The change in the
interest rates has no impact on the Group's equity excluding
retained profits.

2020 —EEf
RMB AR ¥
RMB AR
2019 —E-NEF
RMB AR #&
RMB AR

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign
currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
payables and bank balances that are denominated in USS$,
EUR and HK$, which are currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group, and expose the Group to foreign
currency risk.
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TRETEMEEMEBHRAER > NEEH
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o

(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase in (decrease) in
interest rate  profit before tax
Fl=ZE PRI AT EF
(F¥&)  L# @, G
RMB’000
ARETTT

(1%) 366

1% (366)
(1%) 221

1% (221)

b1 B
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by entering into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations on the translation into RMB of its foreign
operations of sales in US$ and EUR, as described in note 22. It
is the Group's policy to ensure that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
a fixed rate where necessary to address short term imbalances.
Management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will continue to consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure by using financial instruments such
as foreign currency forward contracts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the US$, EUR and HK$ exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities including foreign currency derivatives). The change
in foreign currency exchange rate has no impact on the equity
excluding retained profits.

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZS_ZH

+ZB=+—HLEE
MARBRETESS
MARBRETHER

If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against US$

37.
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HEAMEEEERBE @

S & LB )

UNMI5E22 4l » ANEE B 3B 4B 5] 17 Sh BE 3= HA
B HEB BN ETE U E T KRBT E
NiHEHREAR AR BEREEN R > {Em
EEREEINERE AEBNBEASNEE
BB BIZEEEEXE ANE HINEER
AL URERERFERENRIES
K- BB R E T INE R e 0 WAL S
EZEFBGEHASMITE WINEEIEDN)
HHHREE KNS & fg o

TRETEMEEHMEHTER A& H
PRIGAD B M B =T BRT B T EER G IE
FREZFHNHRE HNEREERER

(BIEINETETR) NARBEEE) o
HNEE PE R B B e ((R BB R BRI W f
&

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
SMESEESR FRIZ AT
A (FE) 1@, Gi)
% RMB’000
AR¥TTT
5 14,177

(5) (14,177)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against US$

Year ended 31 December 2020

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR
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BE_Z-NE
+TZR=+—HLEE
MARBRETESS
MARBRETTHER

BE_ZT"ZTH
+ZRA=+—HLFE
MAREZBTESS
MARBERETTES

S & PR )

37. HBEKREEEEREE®

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
4B B = BRAR A a4
AR (FED) @, CRiL)
% RMB’000
ARETIT
5 9,888
(5) (9,888)
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
ShEEER PRI AT EF
A (FE) Gre2L) /g0
% RMB’000
AR%T
5 (5,269)
(5) 5,269




37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

Year ended 31 December 2020

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against HK$

Notes to Financial Statements
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RERAGEIERERBE @

SMEE BB @

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease)

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

AN EE Bl = BRAR A a4

AR (FED) @, CRiL)

% RMB’000

ARETIT

HEZZ—NEF
+ZB=+—HILFE

MARERETESS 5 (7,105)
MARE ZEUTER (5) 7,105
Increase/ (Decrease)/

(decrease) in increase

foreign currency in profit

rate before tax

ShEEER BRR AT

EFH (FE) Gre2L) /g0

% RMB’000

AR%T

BE_T-THF
+ZRA=+—HLFE

MARE R B THESS 5 (3,933)
MARERBTER (5) 3,933
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019 BHE_ZT—N&F

+TZR=+—HLEE
MARBRABITESS
MARBRBTER

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against HK$

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and notes receivables and deposits and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group's established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of customers is assessed through
credit verification procedures.
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Increase/ Increase/
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foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
4B B = BRAR A a4
AR (FED) @, CRiL)
% RMB’000
ARETIT
5 (2,353)
(5) 2,353
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. MBRAKEEEREREE®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) FEERKE @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging =5 B R R A T £
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TRETEANKTEEEEBRNEEER
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, EEsEERE ZEEBRIERER
which is mainly based on past due information unless other HEH (RIFEMBERERMETBNER K
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- FEDRAERS R+ ZA=1+—HHF
end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts GEEERDE -FIERATHE ERER
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. Ee
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-EH+”"HA=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f@A
EHiEE
518 SRR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E EbIE Ek] 2 [Ek{yapz3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT ARETR ARETRT ARETE
Trade and notes receivables*  FEWNEE BRI FEU Z 15+ - - - 378,246 378,246
Financial assets included in 5t AR E e HANREUGRIE
deposits and other receivables BIERIE E
— Normal** —EH 33,705 - - - 33,705
Pledged deposits BIRIRER
— Not yet past due — 8 AR A 32,889 = = = 32,889
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEBY
— Not yet past due —H AR BE 166,761 = = = 166,761
233,355 - - 378,246 611,601

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERAERATE

205



Notes to Financial Statements

A5 ¥R R I 5E

31 December 2020 —ZE_FF+_—F=+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. MBAKEEEEREERw
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERME @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REEERFEER @
As at 31 December 2019 RN_E—NE+_B=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=@A"
EHEE
JE518 ZHITEHAE BB
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F1REER F2MEEL SEIMEEL b7 %

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTRT ARBTRE AREBT:T

Trade and notes receivables*  FEUN B 5 BR FT R fE U =45+ - - - 348,180 348,180
Financial assets included in ARG R H A E YIS
deposits and other receivables B RIE E

— Normal** —IEE* 18,941 - - - 18,941
Pledged deposits [BEiigErEE A
— Not yet past due — R 146,168 - - - 146,168
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEBY
— Not yet past due — AR 144,798 - - - 144,798
309,907 - - 348,180 658,087
g For trade and notes receivables to which the Group applies & B EE B IR BT 16 77 % T2 LB E B FE L
the simplified approach for impairment, information based on B GIRAREWESE B AR &
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the financial KR BB S ER 2 M1 320 ©
statements.
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits AT REAMEKRAIEN /M EER
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they EEEF R RABAR w4 IE%) > B
are not past due and there is no information indlicating that the B #7145 78 58 LU K i S R B 2 i
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since HI1E B R fEREZEIE ] - Rl » £ 74 B ERY
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial EEE LR R

assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty and by geographical region. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as
the customer bases of the Group's trade receivables are widely

dispersed in different sectors.

Liquidity risk

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted

payments, was as follows:

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings
(excluding lease liabilities)

Lease liabilities

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings
(excluding lease liabilities)

Lease liabilities

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals

StRRITREMES
(FafEREaR)

HE&E
ENEZRAKENRE
B REKERER

SHERTRAMES
(FEEEEaR)

HE&E
BAERRAKRENRE
HftETERRRER

37. MBEMEEBEEREE @
EERRE @
AR AERERERTEEERTFNE=
HETR S ALBAKREIERR - EEE
PRRBRNEBEER /HFARMEERE A
REEERKREZRINZTREREZD
BRAEDH  HAEETEEREEE
PR
A En 1
T RFEERREARNEREEEH
B FEHRTRELR -
As at 31 December 2020
RZZEZBE+°A=1+-H
Less than 3to 12 Tto5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
BEX  OR=ER =E+-fAR —E8f SREF st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR ARWTR ARBFT ARBTR ARETR
- 292,507 689,597 54,000 - 1,036,104
- 631 1,806 5,546 5,494 13,477
56,990 141,872 - - - 198,862
117,021 - - - - 117,021
174,011 435,010 691,403 59,546 5494 1,365,464
As at 31 December 2019
RZE-NE+-A=+—H
Less than 3t012 Tto5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
geX  LIR=ER =E+-fR —E5F SRRE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®Tz ARETT ARETT ARETR
- 254,674 584,485 81,251 - 920,410
- 640 1,866 5,381 6,430 14,317
61,839 268,978 28,000 - - 356,817
84,987 - - - - 84,987
146,826 524,292 614,351 86,632 6,430 1,378,531
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the Group'’s objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and notes
payables and other payables and accruals, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the owners
of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

2020 Annual Report —ZE - EFFif
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rEERTHERLEXREZER AR
RERBEHFEBRUBEXRBEMERF
BB FHRAESBRITRAEMEE B
TEZERARENREUREMENRIEA
RBRER BERERREFBY -BEX
BRESAREAE ABGERE NIRSHR
Wa/LERNT :



37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (note 26)
Trade and notes payables
Other payables and accruals (note 25)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

Notes to Financial Statements

SHESRTREMMES
(Ht5t26)

FE(T E 2R T %

HMpE I TER E A
(Htz£25)

B IRERIREEEY

BFFE
HEmABER

BARREHFER

‘AR

RA 5 ER R MY 5

31 December 2020 —E_FF+_—F=+—H

RERAGEIERERBE @

BXREE @
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—ECEHE “E—NEF
+=B=+—H +-_B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
1,015,603 902,351
198,863 358,817
117,021 84,987
(166,761) (144,798)
1,164,726 1,201,357
1,227,235 1,280,895
2,391,961 2,482,252

49% 48%
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. BATHFZRAER

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the BRARBNBREARNB B AERNE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BN -
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
—EEHE “E-hEF
+ZA=+—8H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR E 373,362 373,362
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENEIE O 336,646 307,514
Other receivables HhfEWERIE 4,599 3,812
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEBY 625 405
Total current assets MENE EARE 341,870 311,731
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHRIBTEE 25,049 26,874
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI/ 35,570 5,853
Dividends payable FEATRZ B 188 17
Total current liabilities Vi I=E I <E-E 60,807 32,744
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 281,063 278,987
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEMRER
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEafE 654,425 652,349
Net assets BEEZE 654,425 652,349
EQUITY fEz
Issued capital BEITIRA 6,329 6,329
Reserves (note) #E (a2 648,096 646,020
Total equity e AR & 654,425 652,349
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. ATHMBRAR @
COMPANY (continued)

Note: Kiaz -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KRB EBBARIT
Share
Share  Contributed Treasury option Retained
premium surplus shares reserve profits Total
RiDEE BB EERR  ERERE Gt st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETE

At 1 January 2019 RIZ2-NF—A—H 268,319 370,213 (19,508) 2,207 20,968 642,199
Profit for the year ERiEt - - - - 35,821* 35,821
Transfer of share award plan reserve PR BREERL)

upon the vesting R Bt B (1,015) - 1,015 - - -
Transfer of share option reserve PR B R B R

upon the forfeiture 2,207 = = (2,207) = =
Final 2018 dividend declared BER-Z-N\ERHRE - - = = (32,000) (32,000)
At31 December 2019 and RZB-—hE+-A=1+—H

1 January 2020 kZ2Z2F—F—H 269,511 370,213 (18,493) - 24,789 646,020
Profit for the year FERER = = - - 40,634* 40,634
Transfer of share award plan reserve 757 /& B A1)

upon the vesting SRS Bl Ghfe (5,188) = 5,188 = . =
Final 2019 dividend declared BER—_F-NEXRERE = = = = (38,558) (38,558)
At 31 December 2020 RIZ2ZEF+-A=1+—H 264,323 370,213 (13,305) - 26,865 648,096
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38.

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
Note:

Contributed surplus
Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the

shares of Hong Kong Kingdom at the date of the Reorganisation over
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange

therefor.

& Profit for the year of 2020 includes dividends from subsidiaries
attributable to previous years’ profits of RMB44,789,000 (2019:
RMB38,553,000).

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March
2021.
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BIARSS

BABBEREABREESERMNARE
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* CECEFEFER G EERE N E A
AELBEEEZNRENEE
44,789,000 (ZE—NF NEK
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itk : REHT & B MR R B IR
Add : Henggang Town, Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, China
E-mail: ir@kingdom-china.com

www.kingdom-china.com
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